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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals” or the “Company”) is primarily engaging in research and development,
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Company runs two pharmaceutical R&D centers and production bases, in Zhuhai and Kunming,
China, specializing in research and development, and manufacturing of Chinese medicines as well as biochemical medicines and
biotechnology products. The Company’s PRC regional headquarters and sales center in Shenzhen is responsible for brand building
for Tianda Pharmaceuticals’s products, market planning and selling, and managing sales network in China. The Company also sets
up a wholly-owned subsidiary in Australia for investment, development, marketing and sales, as well as pharmaceutical development
in South Pacific countries, such as Australia and New Zealand etc. The international sales and marketing center was located in Hong
Kong headquarters, overseeing the sales in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas markets.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 00455). Tianda Group Limited (“Tianda Group”) is the controlling shareholder with a shareholding of 63.5%.

www.liandapharma.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Fang Wen Quan

(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Huijiang
Mr. Lui Man Sang

(Appointed on 30 September 2013)
Mr. Li Suiming

(Resigned on 30 September 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa
Mr. Lam Yat Fai

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

25th Floor, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place, Central
Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Chairman)

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman)
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
Mr. Lam Yat Fai

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Fang Wen Quan
Mr. Lam Yat Fai

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor
CITIC Tower

No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
STOCK CODE

00455

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.tiandapharma.com



CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Below is the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) chart as at 31 March 2014:
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MILESTONES

1992

Hansom Holdings Ltd was listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code : 00455.

1998

The Company changed name to Yunnan
Enterprises Holdings Ltd, primarily
engaging in trading and investing in
companies.

1999

The Company acquired 12.5% interest of
Yuxi Globe Colour Printing Carton Co. Ltd.

2001

The Company acquired 49% interest of
Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd.

2005

The Company increased shareholdings
of Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical
Co. Ltd. to 55%.

The Company acquired 25% interest of
Yunnan Huaning Xingning Colour Material
Printing Co Ltd.

The Company increased shareholdings of
Yuxi Globe Colour Printing Carton Co. Ltd.
to 18.75%.

Tianda Group acquired 9.35% interest of
the Company for the first time.

2007

Tianda Group injected capital in form of
a lot in Zhuhai, China and became the
controlling shareholding of the Company
with a total interest of 50.86%.

2003

In an effort to develop mining and energy
business in China, the Company and
Tianda Group jointly invested in Tianda
Mining (Yunnan) Limited and Tianda
Mining (Gansu) Limited.

[ ozl Report 2014 A

2010

The Company and Tianda Group
conducted asset swap, which included,
among others, the injection of Tianda
Group’s 60% stakes in Zhuhai S.E.Z.
Cheng Cheng Printing Co Ltd into the
Company in exchange for the Company’s
Zhuhai lot.

2011

The Company changed name to Tianda
Holdings Ltd.

2012

The Company and Tianda Group
conducted asset swap, aiming to
consolidate all pharmaceutical business
to the Company and moving all non-
pharmaceutical business to Tianda Group.
The Company then formally changed
name to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

2015

The Company acquired Australian-based
Cynergy Health's business.
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RESULTS
Year ended 31 March
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Revenue 82,951 206,346 397,233 281,995 247173
Profit before tax 50,936 120,155 102,702 83,359 64,426
Income tax expenses (10,244) (18,718) (23,172) (15,663) (15,477)
Profit for the year 40,692 101,437 79,530 67,696 48,949
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 21,287 67,427 43,096 37,740 22,049
Non-controlling interests 19,405 34,010 36,434 29,956 26,900
40,692 101,437 79,530 67,696 48,949
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
Basic earnings per share 2.28 4.34 2.30 2.02 1.18
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
At 31 March
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
(Restated)
Total assets 461,756 1,000,204 1,007,845 917,757 932,490
Total liabilities (22,855) (152,867) (137,899) (142,557) (117,429)
438,901 847,337 869,946 775,200 815,061
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 409,880 676,296 702,958 737,995 751,146
Non-controlling interests 29,021 171,041 166,988 37,205 63,915
438,901 847,337 869,946 775,200 815,061
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REVENUE (CONTINUING) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
HK$'000 HK Cents
247,173

1.18

|-

0.72

2013 130

2012
1.03

I Discontinued
Il Continuing

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY OF THE COMPANY
HK$'000 HK$'000
(2,260)
I, 2309

9,099
2013 4,266
24,375
(1,887)
2012 19,316
25,667

One-off items

Ordinary profit attributable to owners of the Company
(Discontinued)

Ordinary profit attributable to owners of the Company
(Continuing)

737,995

2012 702,958

Note:  One off items included gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain/loss on exploration and evaluation assets and/or loss on plant and machinery written off.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Fang Wen Quan, aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director in 2003. He is the Chairman, Managing Director, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company, and a Director of the Group’s certain
subsidiaries and South Hong Investment Limited. Mr. Fang is the founder and chairman of Tianda Group and Tianda Institute. He
studied International Relations in the University of Sydney and Tsinghua University. Upholding the morality of “Caring for a Better
World”, Mr. Fang is always committed to community services, including donations to the poverties, education and training, healthcare,
scientific research and environmental protection, culture and arts.

Mr. Liu Huijiang, aged 58, was appointed as an executive Director in 2006. He is a senior engineer, graduated from College of
Water Resources and Hydroelectric Engineering (now Wuhan University). Mr. Liu held the posts of design department head, assistant
factory manager and factory manager of Yuxi Hydropower Supplies Factory from 1976 to 1993. He was appointed as a deputy general
manager of Yunnan Hongta Group Company Limited from January 1994. Mr. Liu is also the director of SDIC Yunnan Dachaoshan
Hydropower Company Limited, Yunnan Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Company Limited, Hongta Financial Investment Company
Limited and Kunming Pharmaceutical Corporation.

Mr. Lui Man Sang, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director in 2013. Mr. Lui joined Tianda Group, the controlling shareholder
of the Company in 2007 and is a deputy general manager of Tianda Group. He is now responsible for Tianda Group’s finance,
accounting and tax affairs. Mr. Lui possesses over 25 years of experience covering a variety of industries including auditing in one
of the big four accounting firms in Hong Kong and overseeing the finance department of a Hong Kong listed company. He holds an
Executive MBA granted by City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Li Suiming, aged 56, was appointed as an executive Director in 2004. Mr. Li resigned on 30 September 2013.

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 10 April 2008. Mr. Chiu ceased to act as the chairman of the audit committee and remained as a member of
the committee on 26 November 2013. Mr. Chiu was appointed as the chairman of risk management committee on 22 July 2009. On 1
April 2012, he was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee. He received
an LL.B. degree from the University of Sydney. He is admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South Wales and the High
Court of Australia. He has over 30 years of experience in legal practice. Mr. Chiu is the founding member of the Board of Trustees of
the Australian Nursing Home Foundation and served as the General Secretary of Australian Chinese Community Association of New
South Wales. Mr. Chiu is an independent non-executive director of the CNOOC Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and Bank of China (Australia) Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and
audit committee of the Company on 31 March 2009. Mr. Chiu is a founder and the managing director of Chiu, Choy & Chung C.P.A.
Limited, and a partner of F. S. Li & Co,. He graduated from City University of Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
degree with major in accountancy in 1992 and was awarded a Master of Professional Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2002. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an Associate Member of the
Institute of the Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a member of The Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors, an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators,
United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified Tax Advisor. Mr. Chiu is also an independent
non-executive director of Kenford Group Holdings Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam Yat Fai, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a member of the remuneration committee and a
member of audit committee of the Company in 2004. On 26 November 2013, he was appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.
He was appointed as a member of nomination committee and risk management committee on 22 July 2009. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising). He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lam worked with Kwan Wong Tan & Fong and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
for over 10 years. Mr. Lam has over 24 years of experience in auditing, taxation, corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Lam is an
independent non-executive director of Oriental Press Group Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

Upon the acquisition of the equity interest of a group of companies engaged in research and development (the “R&D”), manufacturing
and sales of pharmaceutical products in August 2012, the Group has focused on pharmaceutical and biotechnology business and
initiated a series of adjustments and reforms ranging from business strategies, sales development, product R&D, quality control,
production capacity planning, talent recruitment to team building. The synergy effects took place, resulting in an uptake of entire
operation capability.

The financial year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Current Financial Year") was the Group’s first financial year including a complete twelve-
month pure pharmaceutical and biotechnology business. Comparing to the result of the continuing operations last year, the revenue
recorded quite a satisfactory increment to HK$247.2million in the Current Financial Year. This has paved a good foundation for the
Group’s further development and assured of a better return for the shareholders.

The Group will further strengthen business management practice and uplift business performance. Meanwhile, we will manage
to enlarge our operation scale and accelerate development through mergers and acquisitions, in order to become a respectful
pharmaceutical group.

OUTLOOK

Last year, China continued to deepen reform the medical and pharmaceutical system and to promulgate policies on the management
and control of pharmaceutical distribution, medicine tendering, price adjustment, medical insurance, and essential medicines, etc. Those
policies increased the operating cost of the industry and exerted certain pressure and uncertainties on those enterprises engaging in
the pharmaceutical business. In response to all these policies, the Group has adjusted business strategies and models, and adopted
various flexible measures to cope with those challenges, in order to be well equipped for a rapid growth in the forthcoming years and to
maximize profitability on large scale.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Limited (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)”)

Established in Zhuhai City, it is the pharmaceutical research and development and production base of the Group. Benefiting from the
health-related policies such as “Notice on Issues Concerning Improving Price Control of Low-Price Drugs” ( AR XOEREZE BB
REEEREMREREA) ) and “Recommendations on Ensuring the Supply of Pediatric Drugs” ( {BEAFMRIE R ZEFREENE T
= R) ) which were newly issued by the National Development and Reform Commission and the National Health and Family Planning
Commission respectively, the pediatric drug series of the company, including lbuprofen Suspension (%3& 35 E#27R), Ibuprofen
Suspension Drops (733845 B2 % 7), Dex-pseud-Chlorpeniramine Syrup (E8UAFRAR), Ambroxol HCI Syrup (EBES &R
#E42) and Ribavirin Effervescent Granules (FI| B ZMEREEERL), etc., have seen a brighter market outlook. Grasping this unique
opportunity, the company will put greater efforts on sales development of pediatric product series for both hospitals and OTC markets,
and put more efforts on R&D of pediatric products. By focusing on both research and development and sales, Tianda Pharmaceuticals
is developing a strong pediatric brand. Meanwhile, we will continue to grow our market share in products that reduce blood pressure
and improve the serum lipid profile, such as Tuoping (¥63F) and ZhiKang (B§&R), to build Tianda Pharmaceuticals’ own brand of
cardiovascular system drugs. In addition, we will redraft our marketing proposal of YiAn Decoction (% Z2[B]4E A AR;%), a Chinese
detoxification medicine, to help Tianda Pharmaceuticals build a favorite brand of Chinese detoxification drugs.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

To further promote sales and expand the scale, the company will comprehensively adjust the research and development strategy
and management, set up incentive mechanism, strengthen projects establishment, increase the investment in resources, accelerate
the introduction of products to launch to market and enrich the company’s product portfolio as soon as possible. The company has
successfully passed the certification examination of Therapeutic Goods Administration in Australia (“TGA”) and was granted the longest
validation period, which is 3 years. Its application for the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice for Pharmaceuticals Products
(2010 Revision) (“the New GMP Version”) certification of PRC to Guangdong Food and Drug Administration is also in progress and is
expected to be approved by the end of 2015. To satisfy the development demands, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) has planned to
relocate and the preliminary work has started. The company endeavors to establish a research and development and pharmaceutical
production base with greater production scale, better quality control system and better cost-efficiency with an aim to become a crucial
growth driver for the Group.

Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (“Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical”)

It is the pharmaceutical research and development and production base of the Group in Kunming City. Having been perplexed by the
market demand for Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection (5% A3 A& & H 7K #%47), the company'’s flagship product, in the past, Meng
Sheng Pharmaceutical started the expansion project of constructing a new plant and installing a new production line in year 2012.
These can enhance the quality control, increase the production capacity (approximately to 150%), satisfy the demand of the market,
reduce the cost and increase the efficiency. Infrastructure project is of vital and lasting importance. New plant and production line are
designed and constructed in accordance with high standard to ensure that the New GMP Version and the certification requirements
of the pharmaceutical supervisory authorities of the targeted overseas markets are complied. The completion date may be slightly
prolonged and the first batch of its products is expected to be rolled out into the market in the third quarter of 2014.

The sales income of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical has been mainly attributed to its competitive product, Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate
Injection. This situation will be changed shortly. “Old products are budding” The company focuses on developing the market for
Aceglutamide (ZEE A ELRZ). The sales of such product in FYE2014 significantly increased by approximately 39% as compared
with the previous corresponding period and presented a good growth momentum. It is believed that Aceglutamide Injection and
Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection together will form a new combination of growth products of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical. To fully
display the efficiency of the new plant and the new lyophilized production line, the company has focused on the development of related
products and strived to launch new products in two years.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China) Co. Ltd. (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China)”)

It is the PRC sales and marketing center established by the Group in Shenzhen. It is mainly responsible for the sales of the Group’s
products in the domestic market, including the products of the above-mentioned two pharmaceutical production bases and the
healthcare product series of Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Limited. To further increase the sales, the company adjusted the
sales strategy and marketing model comprehensively to implement sales cooperation mode of contracting costs under standardised
management, which promptly expands the sales and marketing team, markets and the products coverage areas to capture a greater
market share.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (China) will utilise the domestic sales network to introduce and act as sales agent for quality marketable
overseas products, in order to expand products range to cater for the market demand. The Group will continue to seize the merger
and acquisition opportunities, expand investment on domestic pharmaceuticals distributors, pharmacy chains and other innovative
pharmaceuticals sales channels.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Limited (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)”)

It is the South Pacific Region sales and marketing center established by the Group in Sydney, Australia. The company is mainly
responsible for the sales of the Group’s products in Australia and other South Pacific Region countries and focuses on the operation
of the series of healthcare products acquired in Australia last year. The company positions Herb Valley as the main brand. Following
the “Pink Ribbon” launch in collaboration with Australian National Breast Cancer Foundation (B AF] T & EIFFFIEE LS E) in the
domestic market early in this year, three sub-brands of Wild Colors, namely Wild Pink, Wild Blue and Wild Green, will soon be launched.
By better market segmentation, we aim to win a leading position in the healthcare market and pave the way for expanding the Herb
Valley healthcare products series and personal care products series.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) will soon launch the medical device products we acquired earlier in order to add a new income
source for the company. With our business network in Australia, the company will continue to explore right investment opportunities for
the Group.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong) Limited (“Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Hong Kong)”)

It is the international sales and marketing center established by the Group in Hong Kong headquarters. The company is mainly
responsible for coordinating sales of the Group’s products in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and overseas markets. In May 2014, the
company entered into a cooperation agreement with Berringa, a famous honey products manufacturer in Australia to obtain the agency
right of its products in the Asia Pacific Region. We will launch the first series of natural honey healthcare products of “Super Manuka”
in Hong Kong and Macau and further promote the products in the domestic market and other countries in the Asia Pacific Region.
The online shopping platform (www.stayhealthyhub.com.au), which the company put in abundant resources to establish, has officially

launched. With the aid of e-commerce, it is believed that “Super Manuka” will become a sales pioneer of the healthcare product of the
company and become a brilliant brand of Tianda Pharmaceuticals’ healthcare products.
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN

In short, Tianda Pharmaceuticals has laid a better foundation and a stronger strategic setup through a decade of development.
Undergoing some drastic business reforms this year, we are so empowered and confident over our development in the upcoming year,
long-term performance and the return to our shareholders; we are determined to create a new outlook.

FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK0.24 cent (2013: final dividend of HK0.41
cent) per share for the financial year ended 31 March 2014, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2014 annual general
meeting (the “AGM”"). The final dividend is expected to be paid on or before Tuesday, 30 September 2014 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 15 September 2014.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 11 September 2014 to Monday, 15 September 2014 (both days
inclusive), whereby no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all completed forms of
transfers with the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 September 2014.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to show our appreciation towards our customers, business partners, staff and shareholders for all
the kind support and trust to the Group. Let us continue to work together and deliver better results!

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (‘FYE2014” or the “Current Financial Year”), revenue of the Group increased to HK$247.2 million,
an increase of approximately 37.2% when compared to HK$180.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 (“FYE2013" or the “Last
Financial Year”).

Gross profit increased by approximately 27.8% to HK$158.5 million. The overall gross margin of the Group was 64.1%, representing
a decrease of 4.7% compared to last year (FYE2013: the overall gross margin was 68.8%), which was partly due to the higher
amortisation expenses of HK$12.1 million (FYE2013: HK$6.9 million) incurred for those medical licenses and permits, which acquired
through the acquisition of the entire equity interest in a group of companies that engaged in R&D, manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products (collectively as “Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group”). The adjusted gross profit margin for FYE2014 would be
69.2% (FYE2013: 72.5%) if such effect was excluded. Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group account for the Group’s overall sales, increased
from 31.6% in FYE2013 to 42.9% in FYE2014.

Other income mainly represented interest and investment income of approximately HK$8.2 million for FYE2014 and the corresponding
amount for FYE2013 was HK$5.9 million. Interest and investment income was earned mostly from bank deposits with the remaining
from debt instruments.

In line with the increases in sales and operation scales after the acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group, distribution and selling
expenses and administrative expenses of this year were approximately HK$46.1 million and HK$53.0 million respectively, which were
increased from HK$28.3 million and HK$40.0 million respectively in FYE2013.

Profit for the year from continuing operations decreased slightly from HK$50.8 million in FYE2013 to HK$48.9 million in FYE2014.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company from continuing and discontinued operations for FYE2014 was HK$22.0 million
while it was HK$37.7 million in FYE2013. The earnings per share of the Company for FYE2014 were HK1.18 cents compared to HK2.02
cents in FYE2013.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company from continuing operations, i.e. pharmaceutical and biotechnology business, was
HK$22.0 million (1.18 cents per share) for FYE2014, representing a decrease of 9.8% as compared to HK$24.4 million (1.30 cents per
share) in FYE2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group focuses on pharmaceutical and biotechnology business, which is carried out through Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group, where
the production base and research and development center is located in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical
which is located in Kunming, Yunnan Province.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$247.2 million during FYE2014, representing an increase of 37.2% from HK$180.2 million
in FYE2013. Revenue contribution by Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical was 42.9% and 57.1%
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group

The Group started to consolidate the results of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group from 1 September 2012. Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group
is principally engaged in research, development, production and sales of pharmaceutical and healthcare products in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), Hong Kong and Australia. During FYE2014, revenue has significantly increased by 86.3% from HK$57.0
million in FYE2013 to HK$106.2 million. Compared to Last Financial Year, gross profit has increased by HK$16.9 million, or 58.3%.
The significant growth was partially contributed by the twelve-month results being consolidated in FYE2014 comparing to seven-month
results included in Last Financial Year. Robust sales volume growth of 13.6% was noted, from 11.1 million units in FYE2013 to 12.6
million units in FYE2014 on an annualized basis.

The gross profit margin, nevertheless, has dropped from 50.7% in Last Financial Year to 43.1% in Current Financial Year, as a result
of the keen market competition, national price control on certain key products of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group and the inflationary
pressure on manufacturing cost. The contribution from the major products, Tuoping (Valsartan capsules) and Tuoen (lbuprofen
suspension and drops) has maintained at around 70%.

In the Current Financial Year, net profit of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group has reduced by HK$1.2 million, primarily attributable by
the operating losses of HK$6.4 million incurred by its business in Australia. On 12 March 2013, the Group has acquired an Australia-
based healthcare product business through its wholly owned subsidiary Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia). Despite the business has
contributed on-shore revenue amounted to HK$2.4 million, we have been heavily investing in overheads to revamp the new business
model, including inventories clearance, products re-branding and setting up export distribution channels to the PRC. The management
expects such a vigorous change in the business model will bring in sustainable profits and cash flow to the Group in the near future.

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical

The Group currently owned 55% of equity interest in Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical. During FYE2014, revenue of Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical was HK$141.0 million, representing an increase by 14.4% from HK$123.2 million in FYE2013. Gross profit margin
improved from 77.2% in FYE2013 to 79.9%. The robust sales growth was primarily driven by the increase in revenue generated
from the flagship product, Cerebroprotein Hydrolysate Injection, which has increased by 14.1% from HK$112.5 million in FYE2013
to HK$128.4 million in FYE2014. Gross profit margin of this flagship product improved from 81.5% to 84.3%. The contribution has
accounted for 91.1% of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical’s revenue in FYE2014, which maintained as the same level of 91.3% as last year.

Net profit increased from HK$58.5 million in FYE2013 to HK$59.8 million in FYE2014, despite the net profit margin declined from 47.5%
to 42.3%. The decline in margin was partially attributable by the rise in distribution costs. Also, a one-off expenditure of HK$4.1 million
has incurred for the plant and machinery written-off arising from Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical plant expansion plan. Had the one-off
charge was excluded, the net profit margin for Current Financial Year would have been adjusted to 45.3%.

In Current Financial Year, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical continued to share Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group’s professional marketing
team and distribution network across major provinces and cities in China. This new distribution arrangement has raised the servicing
charges and sales commissions but proved to boost sales volume via expanded geographic markets and sales channels. Management
has substantially factored the rising distribution costs in the product pricing, as reflected on the enhanced gross profit margin.

The new distribution arrangements also mitigated potential operational risks due to over reliance on its previous agent. The Group’s
revenue contributed from the largest customer of Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical has further diluted from 11.4% in FYE2013 to 9.3% in
FYE2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity remained healthy. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$427.3
million (31 March 2013: HK$426.2 million), of which approximately 4.4%, 3.8% and 91.6% were denominated in Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar and Renminbi respectively with the remaining in Australian dollar and Euro. The Group has no external borrowings
during the year. Therefore, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations and daily operational needs.

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

The Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are substantially denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar and
Australian dollar.

The Group has sales and investments in foreign operations which use currencies other than its functional currency Renminbi. As such,
the Group has some exposures to foreign currency risk. The management from time to time determines suitable measures, such as
entering into forward currency contracts, to lessen exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material transactions denominated in
currencies other than Renminbi. The Group did not enter into any forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks as at 31
March 2014.

CHARGES ON ASSETS
The Group did not have any charge on assets as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.
EMPLOYEES

The Group employed approximately 485 employees in Hong Kong, China and Australia as at 31 March 2014. The Group remunerates
its employees based on market terms and the qualifications and experiences of the employees concerned.
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The Company is firmly committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adhering to the principles of corporate
governance, emphasizing transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 March 2014
except as mentioned below.

Mr. Fang Wen Quan is the Managing Director and the Chairman of the Company. Pursuant to paragraph A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. Having
considered the current business operation and the size of the Group, the Board is of the view that Mr. Fang Wen Quan acting as both
the Chairman of the Board and as the Managing Director of the Company is acceptable and in the best interest of the Group. The Board
will review this situation periodically.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and oversees the businesses, strategic development, financial
performance and corporate governance of the Group. The management is delegated with the powers and authorities for overseeing the
day-to-day operation of the Group.

The Board currently consists of 6 Directors comprising 3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”)
namely:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Huijiang

Mr. Lui Man Sang (Appointed on 30 September 2013)
Mr. Li Suiming (Resigned on 30 September 2013)
INEDs:

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

The Board believes that the balance between executive Directors and INEDs is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient balances
that protect the interest of the shareholders and the Group.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
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More than one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualification in accounting or related financial management expertise. Save
as disclosed in the biographical details of each Director, there is no other relationship (including financial, business, family, or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

The articles of association of the Company provide that one-third of all the directors shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM,
and the INEDs are subject to this provision. The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three INEDs in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has established a formal schedule of matters specifically reserves to the Board for its decision. The Board reviews this
schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the Board.

The Board has established procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their duties at the Company’s expenses. The articles of association of the
Company contain description of responsibility and operation procedures of the Board. The Board meets regularly to review the financial
and operating performance of the Group.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties which are set out below:

. develop and review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations;

. review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior management;

. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.

Continuous professional development and training

Directors of the Company are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are also provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Directors’ training

Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors regularly to help ensuring that the Directors are apprised of the latest
changes and development in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts its businesses.

Based on the training records provided to the Company by the Directors, the Directors have participated in the following training during
the year:

Directors Type of trainings

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director) AB
Mr. Liu Huijiang AB
Mr. Lui Man Sang (Appointed on 30 September 2013) AB
Mr. Li Suiming (Resigned on 30 September 2013) AB
INEDs:

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong AB
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa AB
Mr. Lam Yat Fai AB

A:  attending seminar or training session
B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to economy, general business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.
Directors’ meeting

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Board held 4 full board meetings. The attendances of the Directors at the meetings
are as follows:

Number of
Directors Attendance
Executive Directors:
Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director) 4
Mr. Liu Huijiang 4
Mr. Lui Man Sang (Appointed on 30 September 2013) 3
Mr. Li Suiming (Resigned on 30 September 2013) 1
INEDs:
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong 4
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 4

Mr. Lam Yat Fai 4
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The Board has also established the audit committee, nomination committee, remuneration committee and risk management
committee which comprises a majority of INEDs. Each of these committees has its own terms of reference to set out its specific duties
and authorities and reports to the Board. For the terms of reference of each committee, please visit the website of our Company
www.tiandapharma.com.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The remuneration committee of the Company was established in September 2005 with specific written terms of reference.

The remuneration committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, Mr. Chiu Fan Wa and Mr. Lam Yat Fai
and one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan. Mr. Chiu Sung Hong is the Chairman of the remuneration committee
during the year.

The remuneration committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration to all Directors and senior management of the Company and is delegated by the Board
the responsibility to determine on behalf of the Board the specific remuneration packages for all executive Directors and senior
management of the Company.

The remuneration committee held 2 meetings during the year to review and make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors, the INEDs and senior management; and to review the bonus to senior management.

Details of individual attendance of its members during the year are as follows:

Number of

Attendance

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman) 2
Mr. Fang Wen Quan 2
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 2
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 2

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 13(a) & (b) to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established nomination committee in July 2009. It comprises two INEDs, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong and Mr. Lam Yat Fai
and one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan (who is the chairman of the nomination committee).

During the year, Mr. Li Suiming resigned and Mr. Lui Man Sang was appointed as an executive Director of the Company. In considering
the above new appointment of Director, the nomination committee assessed the candidate and incumbent on criteria such as integrity,
independent mindedness, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities effectively,
etc. and made recommendation to the Board for approval.
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Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a) having served the Company for more than 9 years could be relevant to the
determination of an INED’s independence; and (b) if an INED has served more than 9 years, his further appointment should be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Notwithstanding that Mr. Lam Yat Fai has served as an INED for more than 9 years since 22 September 2004, the Board is of the
view that his independence is not affected by his long service with the Company. Mr. Lam Yat Fai meets the independence guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He is independent of the management and free from any business or other relationship or
circumstances which would materially interfere with the exercise of his independent judgement. Hence, the Board considered Mr. Lam
Yat Fai as independent and recommended the re-election of Mr. Lam Yat Fai as an INED at the AGM.

During the year, the nomination committee held 2 meetings. Details of individual attendance of its members are as follows:

Number of

Attendance

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman) 2
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong 2
Mr. Lam Yat Fai 2

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated the board diversity policy in 24 June 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on diversity of the Board of
the Company.

The Board recognizes the importance of having a diverse board in enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate governance. A
diverse board will include and make good use of difference in the skills, industry knowledge and experience, education, background and
other qualities, etc. of Directors and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age gender or religious belief. These differences will
be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.

The nomination committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships with regards to their qualifications, skills, experience and knowledge, assess the independence of INEDs, and make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer.

The nomination committee is also responsible for reviewing and reporting to the board diversity.

Board appointments will be based on merit and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

At present, the nomination committee has not set any measurable objectives to implement the board diversity policy. However, it will
consider and review the board diversity policy and setting of any measurable objectives from time to time.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three INEDs of the Company, being, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong, Mr. Chiu Fan Wa and Mr. Lam Yat Fai. Mr.
Chiu Sung Hong was the chairman of the audit committee. On 26 November 2013, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong ceased to act as the chairman
of the audit committee and remained as a member of the committee and Mr. Lam Yat Fai was appointed as chairman of the audit
committee.

The role and function of the audit committee include the followings:

. review of and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

. review of the annual and interim financial statements prior to their approval by the Board, and recommend application of
accounting policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements; and

. review of the Company'’s financial controls, internal controls and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system.

During the year, the audit committee held 2 meetings. Details of individual attendance of its members are as follows:

Number of

Attendance

Mr. Lam Yat Fai (Chairman from 26 November 2013) 2
Mr. Chiu Sung Hong (Chairman until 26 November 2013) 2
Mr. Chiu Fan Wa 2

The work performed by the audit committee during the year under review, includes the followings:

. review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 and for the six months ended 30 September 2013;
. consider and approve of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; and

. review the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has established risk management committee in July 2009. It comprises two INEDs of the Company, Mr. Chiu Sung Hong
(chairman of risk management committee) and Mr. Lam Yat Fai and one executive Director of the Company, Mr. Fang Wen Quan.

The role and function of the risk management committee include the followings:

. enhance and strengthen the system of risk management of the Group and provide comments and recommendations thereon to
the Board;

. identify the risks of the Group and provide recommendations to the Board; and

. other matters authorized by the Board.



[l Report 2014 IS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors of the Company, they all confirm that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit and other services, including reviewing interim results and taxation services for the year provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor of the Company, amounted to HK$1,288,000 and HK$229,800 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements. The Directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations
and applicable accounting principles. The Directors of the Company are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The statement of the auditor
about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to 70.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal control so as to ensure the shareholders’ investment
and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded. The system of internal control is designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve
corporate objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud. In
addition, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system through the audit committee and the internal audit
team of the Company. The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Lo Tai On, a representative from an external secretarial services provider, as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact person with the company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ng Chi Hung,
deputy financial controller. Mr. Lo has confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there was no change in the memorandum of association and articles of association of the
Company, except (1) the amendment of the articles of association in order to bring the constitution of the Company in line with current
amendments made to the Listing Rules that came into effect on 1 January 2012 and 1 April 2012; and (2) amendment of the provisions
in the articles of association in relation to the dividends.

The above amendments have been passed by special resolutions on 6 September 2013. For the updated memorandum of association
and articles of association of the Company, please visit the website of our Company at www.tiandapharma.com.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company employs a range of communication tools to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll had been read
out at the general meetings. All votes of the shareholders were taken by poll. The Company announced results of the poll in the manner
prescribed under the Listing Rules.

The AGM of the Company was held on 6 September 2013, a notice convening the AGM contained in the circular dated 31 July 2013
was dispatched to the shareholders together with the 2013 annual report. A separate resolution was proposed by the chairman of the
meeting in respect of each separate issue, including re-election of Directors. Mr. Fang Wen Quan, the Chairman and Managing Director
and INEDs attended the AGM to answer questions raised from shareholders. Other Directors were unable to attend the AGM due to
their other business commitment. No other general meeting was held during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group fully recognizes the importance of employing a professional, truthful and proactive attitude in promoting investor relations.
This underscores the Group’s persistence in maintaining optimum all-round communications with investors, allowing it to collect
information and valuable feedbacks from investors and announce its business strategy and direction in due course. These efforts are
critical for the Group to improve its corporate governance and strengthen investor confidence.

Ensuring high corporate transparency is a key emphasis in the Group’s investor relations activities. During the year under review, the
Group promoted investor relations through different channels. Regular meetings are held between the management and investors.
Latest information regarding the Group and its business is proactively disclosed to investors so that the best investment decisions can
be made. Whenever announcements on annual results, interim results and material transactions are made, the Group will capitalize
such opportunities to enhance communications with investors, explaining to them the Group’s latest operational situations and direction
of development.

The Company also maintains a website at www.tiandapharma.com, where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Shareholders and investors may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through Investor Relations &
Corporate Communications Department whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Fax: 2541 6558
Email:  investor_relations@tianda.com
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year at such place as may be determined by the Board. All general meetings other than AGM
shall be called an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”). Set out below are procedures by which shareholders may (1) convene
the EGM; (2) put forward enquires to the Board; and (3) put forward proposals at general meetings. The procedures are subject to the
Company’s articles of association and applicable legislation and regulations.

(1)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for shareholders to convene the EGM

Any 2 or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition in aggregate not less than 25 per cent of such of
the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

Such requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM, the
requisitionists themselves may convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Directors to
convene such a meeting shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

The notice period to be given to all the registered shareholders for consideration of the proposal raised by the requisitionist(s)
concerned at the EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal as set out in the Company’s articles of association and the
CG Code.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquires to the Board. All enquiries shall be in writing with the detail contact information
of the requisitionists through the Company’s principal place of business of Hong Kong at Suites 2405-2410, 24th Floor, CITIC
Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong or email to direct_enquiries@tianda.com for the attention of the Board of
Directors.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings
There are no provisions in the Company’s articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders to put
forward new resolution at general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders may follow

the procedures set out above to convene the EGM for any business specified in such written requisition.

The procedures for shareholder of the Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on the Company website
at www.tiandapharma.com.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are research and development,
production and sales of pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by segment for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 32.6% of the Group’s total
revenue while the largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 9.4% of the Group’s total revenue. In addition, for the
year ended 31 March 2014, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 20.9%of the Group’s total purchases
while the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 6.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the reporting year, to the knowledge of the Directors, Tianda Group indirectly hold 60% equity interest in BREAS x4 & 55
B ENFEBRR/AE (Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing Company Limited) (“Cheng Cheng Printing”) which is one of the five major
suppliers of the Company.

Except for the above-disclosed, none of the Directors, associates of Director or Shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of
the Directors owes more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Company’s five major suppliers or five major
customers during the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 71 to 72.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 6 to 7 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity set out
on pages 75 to 76 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had retained profit available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands of approximately HK$106,305,917. Moreover, the share premium account
of the Company may be distributed, provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 March 2014,
the Company'’s share premium account amounted to HK$257,839,900.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Fang Wen Quan (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Liu Huijiang

Mr. Lui Man Sang (Appointed on 30 September 2013)
Mr. Li Suiming (Resigned on 30 September 2013)
INEDs:

Mr. Chiu Sung Hong

Mr. Chiu Fan Wa

Mr. Lam Yat Fai

Mr. Lui Man Sang was appointed as an executive Director on 30 September 2013 and in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s
articles of association, he will retire and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company'’s articles of association, Messrs. Chiu Sung Hong and Lam Yat Fai will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

INEDs are appointed for a term of 2 years and are subject to retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of 2 years. The service
agreements of the executive Directors, Messrs, Fang Wen Quan and Liu Huijiang have been renewed on 1 April 2014.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of 2 years. The service agreements of the
INEDs have been renewed on 1 April 2014.

None of the Directors has entered into any service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within 1
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2014, the interests of the Company’s Directors, chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”), were as follows:

Shares of the Company
Name of Director Capacity Number of shares held %
Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 (Note) 63.50

Note: All the above shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is
deemed to have a corporate interest in the above shares owned by Tianda Group and all the interests stated above represent long positions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The purpose of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) is to enable the Company to recognize the future and/or past contributions of the
participants (as defined in the Scheme and including any director and employee of any member of the Group) to the Company, and to
attract and retain such important participants and/or to maintain a continuing relationship, with participants who have contributed to the
result, growth, success and benefit of the Group, and in relation to administrative staff, to recruit and retain experienced and talented
individuals and/or to reward their past contributions.

The Scheme is for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption on 13 July 2010. The directors may, at their discretion, make an offer
to any participant to take up options. An option is deemed to have been granted and accepted by the grantee upon his or her signing
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option and paying HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Scheme shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date (which date must be
a business day); (i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of a share
of the Company on the offer date.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10 per cent of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme. An option may be exercised during a period to be determined by the directors in its
absolute discretion and in any event such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which the option is granted.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant under the Scheme in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total number of shares in issue of the Company. Any further grant of options in
excess of the 1 per cent limit shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant and his or her associates
abstaining from voting.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the Scheme at the EGM held on 13 July 2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors nor any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2014, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that
the following shareholders had notified the Company of the relevant interests in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name of Shareholder Capacity Number of shares held %

Tianda Group Beneficial owner 1,187,594,704 (Note 1) 63.50

Mr. Fang Wen Quan Held by controlled corporation 1,187,594,704 (Note 1) 63.50

South Hong Investment Limited Beneficial owner 214,992,930 (Note 2) 11.50
(“South Hong")

Hongta Tobacco (Group) Limited Held by controlled corporation 214,992,930 (Note 2) 11.50

(“Hongta”)
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) These 1,187,594,704 shares are beneficially owned by Tianda Group. Mr. Fang Wen Quan has 100% equity interests in Tianda Group and, accordingly, is
deemed to have a corporate interest in the said 1,187,594,704 shares owned by Tianda Group.

(2) These 214,992,930 shares are beneficially owned by South Hong. South Hong was beneficially owned as to approximately 96.57% by Hongta.
Accordingly, Hongta is deemed to be interested in the 214,992,930 shares owned by South Hong.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 March 2014, no short position was recorded in the register kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other interest representing 5% or more in the Company’s issued
share capital as at 31 March 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.
ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of this continuing connected transaction which is subject to the reporting requirements
under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are summarized as follows:

Purchases of the instruction leaflets and packaging boxes

On 12 November 2012, a framework agreement was entered into among Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and Cheng Cheng
Printing for governing the transactions for purchasing printed instruction leaflets and packaging boxes from Cheng Cheng Printing and
specifying the terms adopted including the annual purchase caps. Cheng Cheng Printing is a subsidiary of Tianda Group, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, it is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. It is also a connected person of the
Company because it is an associate of Hongta, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, this framework agreement and
the transactions contemplated under this agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. This framework agreement was for the three financial years ending 31 March 2015. Details of the transactions are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 November 2012.
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The annual cap and the actual amount of the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2014 are shown as
follow:

Business Type The annual cap The actual transaction amount

Purchases of instruction leaflets and packaging boxes HK$7,000,000 HK$2,932,241
Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, INEDs have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that:

1. these transactions were in the Company’s ordinary and usual course of business;

2. these transactions were entered into on normal commercial terms; and

3. these transactions were carried out in accordance with respective agreement terms which were fair and reasonable, and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have provided a letter to the Company’s Board of Directors confirming that the
above continuing connected transactions:

1. have received the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

3. have not exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement(s).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the directors are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. No director or any of his associates and executive is involved in dealing his own remuneration.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

Fang Wen Quan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHENRS

Deloitte.
45

s

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TIANDA PHARMACEUTICALS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 156, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagements, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GoRnhkHt2ERRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE —F—IF=F=+—HILFE

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
BteE EIT BT
Continuing operations FHEREEE
Revenue 'ON 8 247,173,069 180,213,975
Cost of sales SHERA (88,692,492) (56,181,034)
Gross profit A 158,480,577 124,032,941
Other income HAWKA 9(a) 11,413,870 6,857,835
Other gains and losses Hit e k18 9(b) (4,734,931) 2,683,303
Distribution and selling expenses PEREHEX (46,094,182) (28,258,018)
Administrative expenses TR (53,011,614) (39,969,473)
Research and development costs s RLA (1,627,104) (2,489,689)
Profit before tax BRIEATE R 64,426,616 62,856,899
Income tax expense PRttt 10 (15,477,270) (12,097,888)
Profit for the year from continuing operations ANEERBFHEREER 2 a7 11 48,949,346 50,759,011
Discontinued operations BARIERERER
Profit for the year from discontinued operations AEERBERIELE XL Y
Vgl 12 - 16,936,760
Profit for the year ARERESFH 48,949,346 67,695,771
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hir2m (Zi) s
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A& EN A4 ERm 2B :
Exchange difference arising on translation BEESZERERE (1,420,208) 7,915,721
Reclassification of exchange differences upon HERBARR—TEEE AR
disposal of subsidiaries and an associate BN EERES - (5,036,086)
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year ANEEH2H (X H) Wi (1,420,208) 2,879,635
Total comprehensive income for the year AEELERZEE 47,529,138 70,575,406
Profit for the year attributable to: AEEHNFRER
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of AR EIRRELAFE G
the Company
- Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ —AFERBRFELEELEZ
it 22,049,566 24,375,141
— Profit for the year from discontinued operations —AFERE E&R ILELEER
2w - 13,364,921
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of AR EIRRE LA EE R
the Company 22,049,566 37,740,062
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling R A EE T
interests
— Profit for the year from continuing operations ~— — AEEREFELLELE Y
bl 26,899,780 26,383,870
— Profit for the year from discontinued operations —AFERE BRI
Ziafl - 3,571,839
Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling R T (AN R 7
interests 26,899,780 29,955,709
48,949,346 67,695,771
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GoiRnREMEENRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z _F—IF=F=+—HILFE

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Total comprehensive income for the year AEELEPHEERER
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ANEEE 20,818,406 39,345,859
Non-controlling interests iR R 26,710,732 31,229,547
47,529,138 70,575,406
HK cents HK cents
&l el
Basic earnings per share BREFZEF 14
From continuing and discontinued operations REFELER
BRI 1.18 2.02
From continuing operations REFHEREER 1.18 1.30
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEMBINAR

At 31 March 2014 R-F—MF=F=+—H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
BiE BT BT
(Restated)
(BE5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment MIZE, BB ERE 16 141,227,045 117,967,780
Prepaid lease payments BNHENE 17 87,608,473 90,761,957
Goodwill S 18 111,618,198 111,948,900
Intangible assets B EE 19 86,161,275 98,765,832
Rental deposit HE®Re - 1,378,684
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WY, BRERSREZERE
equipment 2,056,465 7,202,187
428,671,456 428,025,340
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories et 20 28,811,783 33,309,688
Trade and bills receivables and other receivables  TEIBR L EINE B K
HAth eI 21 44,588,701 27,130,041
Prepaid lease payments YaffHERIE 17 3,153,484 3,153,484
Bank deposits RITER 22 252,216,102 243,456,573
Bank balances and cash IRITHEGRIRE 22 175,048,174 182,682,184
503,818,244 489,731,970
CURRENT LIABILITIES REERE
Trade and other payables FEATBRFR R E A FE AT R 23 62,641,149 55,025,764
Government grants — current portion BUT B — BNERER 1 24 208,534 370,696
Amount due to a related company FEfT—FERERBIHIEA 33(a) 1,463,087 926,236
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders ~ FEfIFIZPRIRERAR S = 28,016,609
Tax payable FEMIRIE 7,880,164 11,363,415
72,192,934 95,702,720
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEERE 431,625,310 394,029,250
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #@#&&ER AR 860,296,766 822,054,590
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Government grants — non-current portion BRI B — JERNERER (9 24 - 926,740
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBARE 26 45,235,422 45,928,160
45,235,422 46,854,900
NET ASSETS EERE 815,061,344 775,199,690
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

GEMBINAR

At 31 March 2014 R=F—F=FA=+—H

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
FtEE BT BT
(Restated)
(RRE5)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXRfHE
Share capital A 25 187,011,816 187,011,816
Reserves & 564,134,379 550,983,457
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN B R E( SR 751,146,195 737,995,273
Non-controlling interests e[S A 63,915,149 37,204,417
TOTAL EQUITY i 815,061,344 775,199,690

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 156 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014 and are
signed on its behalf by:

FANG WEN QUAN
IIXHE

Chairman

EER

HRENEBEZAGHBRRER-Z
—OFENA T tHEEFEHERIRESR
fis, WHTIEEARESTEEE

LUI MAN SANG

aXE

Director

4
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SARBEDE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B ZE—F—IF=F=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
FARRREER

Amounts
recognised
in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated
in equity
Capital ~ Capital relating to Non-
Share Share redemption contribution  Special  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated disposal controlling
capal  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits groups Total interests Total
HER]
REMLE
KaHEDR
BAEE MR RigdRe E 3
Rt REE BE  BE MR AREE ERRR RHEN 0 B ar #m g
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HiKS HiK$ ik HKS HKS HKS HKS
B Bt EBn B En B En AT BT B B En
Note ()  Note i)
MEEG )

At1 April 2012 RIB-ZF
mA-A 187,011,816 274,638,193 8000 447751 3460016 41419484 1263189 160620029 18690228 702957313 166,966,346 869,945,659
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 37,740,062 - 31740062 29955709 67,6%,771
Exchenge diferenceasngon 1 BE4E Y
{ranslation ERER - - - - - - 794819 - (1306310) 6641883 1273838 791572
Reclassfication upon disposal o~ HERBATE
subsidaes 5% - - - - - - - o B0 (0606 - %08
Total comprehensive income FEELANG
for the year ] - - - - - - 7948195 3740062 (6,342.306) 30345859 31229547 70575406

Appropriaton of maintenanceand  EEREEES Y

production funds (Note (i) MR (RHEE() - - - - - 59609 - (596 - - - -
Utlisaion of maintenanceend ~ BEREEERZ
production funds (Note (i) R (i) - - - - - (983 - 933 - - - -
Transfer upon disposalof HERBLRE
Subsdrs B\ - - - - - (16825409 SoRmm (e - (7911879) (1711879
Dividends declared fo EETEERER
non-controling shareholders RE - - - - - - - - - - (d3,101.597) (43101,597)
Dividend recogrised as distibuon KBS HER 2
e - - - - - - - (8789,5%) - (8789,555) - (878955)
Deemed capita contibution RIERAERAT
from ulimate holding company ~ tH & (BEE30(c)
e 308 0) R() : - L - - - - s By
At 31 March 2013 RZZ-=F
ZB=t-H 187011816 274638193 8000 8959307 3460016 25092284 20580089 218,245,568 - 737995273 37204417 775199690
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - - 2,049,566 - 2049566 26899780 48,949,346
Bichange diferenceaisngon ~~ REEAZER
fansion £5 - - - - - - () - SNBUE) (RN (1412
Total comprehensive income FEELANG
for the year e - - - - - - (1.231160) 22,049,566 - 20818406 26710732 47529138
Appropriaion of mainenanceand  EEREEES Y
production funds (Note (i) MR (HEE() - - - - - 285694 - (285943 - - - -
Utlisaton of maintenanceand ~ #EREEESZ
production funds Note (i) EEGEI) - - - - - (1355 - 135 - - - -
Dividend recogrised as distibufon R RERERZ
e - - - - - - N (68 T

At31 March 2014 RZ5-ME
SASH-H 0101816 246819 8000 8950307 3460016 22671 19348920 22990728 - THIMGA9 63015049 81506134
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Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEREER

For the

Notes:

(il

year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z —F—NF=H=1+—HIFE

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal amount of
the share capital of a subsidiary acquired by the Company pursuant to a corporate
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1992.

The statutory reserves represent (1) the appropriation of certain percentages
of profit after taxation of the subsidiaries established in the Mainland of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as recommended by the directors of those
subsidiaries based on the PRC statutory financial statements and (2) provision for
production safety being accrued by the Group at fixed rates based on operating
revenue (“the maintenance and production funds”), which is transferred from
accumulated profits to the specific reserve and could be utilised when expenses
and capital expenditures in production maintenance and safety measures are
incurred.

B &E -

(i

FEEZFNREDARDRBE-ERSEEE
REBOR—NAN_FEETBHERZAAR
AELEMMET 2 AR ERRRITZIRAEE
BB —RBNB AR ZRAEEMER ZE

REREETIE() R EA RIAE (THEL) P
I Z B AR 2 EFRBEPEIEE VB
RZEMERMEBAZFWE LB ZFRHE
BHEEETEA L ZARRQEETE Z#
BHNAEEMNEEVANSEEZEENRESE
(MEREERES)), ARMEHNEBRERG
#E, BEREERBRREERELRINE
AXHREA,



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, LE
MaRERE
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ_F—IF=F=+—HILFE

[l Report 2014 R

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
BaE BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (R
Profit for the year REEHF] 48,949,346 67,695,771
Adjustments for: P TIIRIEEL 2R
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FENTHERE 2 #H 3,163,422 1,934,334
Amortisation of intangible assets mR EEEH 12,220,191 10,334,261
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M. BB KEEITE 5,707,497 9,073,914
Gain on disposal of exploration and evaluation HEMRKIMEEE 2
asset - (2,383,728)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAT Z KT - (12,305,012)
Government grants released to income BB E W (1,090,070) (362,898)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on BEEREREE
inventories REEE (411,170) -
Income tax expense Ffsiix 15,477,270 18,663,152
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFFERAN (5,894,512) (6,599,795)
Investment income from available-for-sale AHHEREZRERA
investment (1,529,645) (1,534,918)
Investment income from foreign exchange linked ~ 4MNEEMARE ZIRE A
investment (758,946) -
Loss on disposal/write off of property, plant and HE MiHE. BERRE
equipment 218 4,135,946 168,522
Share of results of an associate i IN=TE S = (946,190)
Write off of intangible assets B EREMH 12,828 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESHBHICRERERE
working capital 79,982,157 83,737,413
Decrease in inventories #ERD 4,773,764 21,371,537
(Increase) decrease in trade and bills receivables  FEIBR R BN ZE &
and other receivables AWK GEN) B> (16,079,976) 3,334,296
Decrease in amounts due from related companies  FEUREEEA R RIE R = 37,514,112
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B BRAR K ELft BT ERIL A0
GRi) 7,826,230 (5,906,670)
Increase in amounts due to related companies FEREIE AR FUBIE N 536,851 6,304,526
Cash generated from operations REEBREXZRE 77,039,026 146,355,214
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EFER (19,343,757) (18,453,334)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEELZREFE 57,695,269 127,901,880
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

w, \AEE Y 17 l}IbE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ _F—IFE=F=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
NOTES HK$ HK$
BaE BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment E% E%% R EE M 3% A (26,006,128) (7,006,757)
Net (increase) decrease in bank deposits TERR () wiF4E (8,759,529) 23,166,236
Advance payment for property, plant and equipment %ﬁ\ RS K5t < Bk (2,062,946) (6,685,245)
Additions to intangible assets NEREE (695,316) (2,416)
Expenditure paid for exploration and IR AN EE 2 AX
evaluation asset - (4,186,258)
Cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZRERH 30(c) &
(d) - (48,442,229)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries/ ~ WHEHBAR, (B 2EERE  30()
business ] &(b) - (47,628,323)
Interest received BIKFH S 5,894,512 6,599,795
Investment income received ERRE R 2,288,591 1,534,918
Dividend received from an available-for-sale B ERERIZEE -
investments — investment in an investee company ~ R—EI#IXEAE] Zi‘ﬁﬁ - 5,369,982
Net proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale B[RRIt EREZ FTE
investments L - 2,479,076
Proceeds from disposal of exploration and HEMRKMMEEZFIBHE
evaluation assets - 2,454,289
Dividend received from an associate E—MEHERE 2R E = 1,517,660
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE. BEKRREZHE
equipment A = 32,508
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EEIFTRZRERE (29,340,816) (70,796,764)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIE R
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders ENFFERIRERE Z R E (28,104,900) (4,072,363)
Dividend paid to shareholders EMREZERE (7,667,484) (8,789,555)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES B2 BFifzRE 54 (35,772,384) (12,861,918
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASHAND  R&RESSEER (7)1
CASH EQUIVALENTS E (7,417,931) 44,243,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZRERASERER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 182,682,184 139,345,117
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE INEEREEZZE
CHANGES (216,079) (906,131)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF  RERZRERFSS(E
THE YEAR, I5H,
represented by bank balances and cash PURTTHESBMIESRR 175,048,174 182,682,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“SEHK”). Its ultimate holding company is Tianda Group
Limited (“Tianda Group”), a private limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong, which is ultimately controlled by Mr. Fang Wen
Quan. The address of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed on page 2 of the annual
report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (‘RMB’). As the
shares of the Company are listed in the SEHK, for the convenience of
the financial statements users, the results and financial position of the
Group are expressed in Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$"), the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into five sale and
purchase agreements (“‘Asset Swap Agreement’) with Tianda Group
to dispose of its mineral resources business and packaging and
printing business in exchange for business relating to manufacture
and sales of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products (‘Asset
Swap”), so as to realign the Group’s business focus and resources
in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology business in line with the
Group’s latest business strategy. The transaction was approved by
independent shareholders of the Company on 22 June 2012 and
the transaction was completed on 31 August 2012. Details of the
transaction were set out in note 30(a).

On 6 March 2013, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) Pty Limited
(the “Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia)”), an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an acquisition agreement
with independent third parties (“Cynergy Group”) for acquisition of a
business. The transaction was completed on 12 March 2013. Details
of the transaction were set out in note 30(b).

—HREIE

ApRER—ERRASHEEEMMIIZA
MBERAE, ERREBHMSRZN
BRAE (TEBBRAN) L. HRE
ERABR/RAEEERAE (TRAE
), —EREBEMBIZIATR
NA), HAXBEERKE. AAF
Z MR R R EE A S MR bR
FIRFI6EM R

ARBZNEEBRARE. AREAA
Bl 2RIV BB LT, RTTEH
BREZERERE, FEEZEEK
BRI UET (AGFEEHHRRZ

EHREE) E5,

RRB—RREERAE, HEEEM
BB ZEBEN M6,

R_B-"F=A=1+H, FRFHEX
REEI LA BEEmRE (TEEER
#1), BRNEHEBERREBREE
ENRIZET, WIRENEREERIHEREE
SYERZEE(TEEER)), UER
AEETEREEMEB I EBEMNE
R, EAEERFIEBRE—R. &ZX
ZERZB—FAA-+HEERR
BEIRERAE, WERZF—ZF/\
R=1t—HZERRZ. ZRXFHZFIEH
FRMIEE30(a)o
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ek, WE—IBEE., ZRZIERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE _F—MFE=/F=+—HILFE

RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

As disclosed in note 30(b) of the consolidated financial statements,
the provisional estimated fair values were used for recognising the
intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of a business from
Cynergy Group on 12 March 2013, date of acquisition. The fair value
assessment were completed during the year ended 31 March 2014,
and pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 3, the
comparative consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2013 has been restated to reflect the finalised fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the transaction. As there
were no impact on profit or loss in prior year, the accumulated profits
at 1 April 2013 has not been restated.

The effect of the finalised fair value described above is summarised
below:

BILRER

PANERE M B IRR M FF300) T E,
RIEHH_S—=F=A+"HM
Cynergy Group W 8 3 %5 [5s P UK B8 < $B7E
BEDNRARBMETAAEERESR. 2
AEEFHERBEE-S—NE=A
=t+—HEFENTH, REBEEEHR
BmMEERER, RTF—=F=8
=+—HZUBRGEMBIRARETFE
5, DURMRAR 5 HRFTR B & A S RIS
BEZREEBEEANEEB., HREUE
FEZE@IETZE RF—=FMK
A—HZRZtaEMEET,

TRREBEEAREEZZEM R
T

31 March

and

31 March 2013 Restatements 1 April 2013

“B-=F

—F—=F —A=+—H

=—B=1+—H 5 KkMA—H

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

(originally (as

stated) restated)

(REZ7) (FEE7)

Gooduwill e 109,062,595 2,886,305 111,948,900
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEARE (43,041,855) (2,886,305)  (45,928,160)
Total effect on net assets and equity HEEFERERZZERE 66,020,740 - 66,020,740

The fair value of the intangible assets at date of acquisition has been
finalised on the basis of a valuation using income approach by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer, not
connected to the Group. Details were set out in note 30(b).

EEESERNBEHEZ AREEIIER
B EEENT RS E 2 B S EREEMS
{BEEPES EHMERETR AR UL
WAEITZMEMRAET. FEHN
BFEE30(b)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and revised standards, interpretation and amendments
applied in the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised amendments to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
HKFRS 7 and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
and HKFRS 12 Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(as revised in 2011) Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of these new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group'’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it
deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK(SIC) Int — 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an investee when (a) it has power over the investee, (b)
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor to
have control over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over
an investee. The directors assess the application of HKFRS 10 and
conclude that the Group has had control over the investee which are
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements before the
application of HKFRS 10. Accordingly, the application of the adoption
of HKFRS 10 has had no material impact on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application
of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The application of the adoption of
HKFRS 12 has additional disclosure in these consolidated financial
statements (please see note 36 for details).

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and
disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13
is broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items
for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

The directors assess the application of HKFRS 13 and conclude
that no additional disclosure is required in the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Items of Other Comprehensive Income. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income”. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1
does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.

New and revised standards, interpretations and amendments
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and revised standards, interpretations and amendments

issued but not yet effective (continued)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

s Available for application the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions
5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after

1 January 2016

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Except as described below, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (*CGU”) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal
of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its
fair value less costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on SEHK
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4, FEZEER @
Basis of consolidation e E%E

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis required by another
standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any,
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the relevant CGU or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata based on of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE _F—MFE=/F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

. the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMBERME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE _F—MFE=/F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when an entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy in impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets including trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of 60 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that from an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related company and dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

FETEGR @)

SMTH@®

EHMEERKREATIR
HEEERRTZEBRRATLAEIR
BRIz ENTHZ HHE SR A E
MERATAEZ EENBEREHEETR
Ao

BREIR
BRATATGERERIIBRERE&ERR
rEEEETHENGRERZENS
Mo HARRRITZIRATEREIRFAR
SRR E TR AR

E@f /i\t

ERMXERTEER A EREN AR
REBSHESENEBRXZTE. B
MEDREMEEZRFHN (WNE
F3) B RS R PG il 5T ARSI 25 (B
EERERNRZMEENSHERER
REF. REWMAREM G ERITE)
BRI REV SRR ZREFHEZ

22
K

—t-o

M B RS B R R E AR

THEE

EREASERMRIREAMEN R,
FEN—RERE A R SRR E M IR
RIRR, FERUBRNKAZBHENA

E+Eo



98

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AMBERME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE _F—MFE=/F=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligation are discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or CGU in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign operation
(i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), exchange
difference accumulated in equity arisen from the translation of the
subsidiary or associate’s functional currency, RMB, to the Company’s
functional currency, HK$, before the change in functional currency
of the Company from HK$ to RMB, are reclassified to profit or loss.
Whereas exchange difference accumulated in equity arisen from the
translation of subsidiary or associate’s and the Company’s functional
currency, RMB, to the Group's presentation currency, HK$, was
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plan and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #{Z _F—NF=F=+—HI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

Determining whether an impairment is required requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment or the respective CGU in which the goodwill,
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment belong, which
is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. If there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount
shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group shall
determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant assets or
the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or the CGU for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or there is a downward revision of future estimated cash
flows due to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation of the relevant assets and respective CGU are disclosed
in note 18.

No impairment loss is recognised during the years ended 31 March
2014 and 2013.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using straight-line method, at the rates ranging
from 3% to 33.33% per annum. The estimated useful lives that the
Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment reflect the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of the assets. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in useful lives and therefore depreciation and
impairment losses in future years.

As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$141,227,045 (2013: HK$117,967,780). Details of
the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 16.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders value. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital, accumulated
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of the Group’s business. The directors of the Company also balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debts.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. TR TE
a.  Categories of financial instruments a. =RMTERLER
Financial instrument 2014 2013
classification HK$ HK$
SRITESE BT BIT
Financial assets
ERIEE
Trade and bills receivables and other receivables* Loans and receivables 37,479,191 24,209,532
FEKBR S FE WS = 18 R ELAth FE I3 ERREBER
Bank deposits Loans and receivables 252,216,102 243,456,573
RITER HI KRR
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables 175,048,174 182,682,184
RITHER LIRS BEFRKREBER
464,743,467 450,348,289
* Excluding prepayments and deposits
* TEEEAFIERES
Financial liabilities
SRIBE
Trade and other payables* At amortised cost 16,938,961 14,945,875
FEAT BRI EL A FE R RN
Amount due to a related company At amortised cost 1,463,087 926,236
[EN—FERENBFIE R A
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders At amortised cost - 28,016,609
FEM IR 2 S RN
18,402,048 43,888,720

*

Excluding accruals, deposits from customers and value added tax
payables
* FEIERFA. ERREREMEER
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables and other receivables, bank deposits and bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount due to a related
company and dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. It is, and has been throughout the year, the
Group’s policy not to enter into trading of derivative financial

instruments.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
price risk) and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to perform
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated

in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group requires some
of its customers to make prepayment on their purchase of
pharmaceutical products. And the management has delegated
a team responsible for the determination of credit limits
for other customers, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

At 31 March 2014, the Group has concentration of credit risk
relating to trade receivables as 29.5% (2013: 37.2%) of the
outstanding balances is due from five (2013: five) external
customers in the PRC. Other than several major customers, the
exposure is widely spread over a large number of customers
during the current financial year.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or state-owned banks
located in the PRC.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

7. ERTEw®@

109

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEEKBEERERSRBER &)
(continued)
Market risks iz RS
(i) Currency risk () E#EE
Certain bank deposits of the Group are denominated KEBEETIRITERLAINE
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not S, ANEEE B aiil N
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the HHRBER, A, EEER
management monitors foreign exchange exposure TONERER, WRARERTE
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency & R ¥R E RINEEEE,
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RIREEAAR, ANEREDIINE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at JEZEMEENREEARE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: ZEREEAT :
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
HK$ BIT 18,881,212 108,180,221 - 177,843
United States Dollar (‘US$”) ET 16,180,259 16,008,386 - -
Euro (‘EUR”) BT 8,143 9,196 - -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 4% (2013: 4%) increase and decrease in RMB, the
functional currency of the respective group entities,
against the relevant foreign currencies for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. The sensitivity rate
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates with
reference to historical fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates during the year. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at 31 March 2014 and
2013 for a corresponding change in foreign currencies
rates. A negative number below indicates a decrease in
post-tax profit for the year where the RMB strengthens
against the relevant currencies. For a weakening of RMB
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

TRl T B @)

HEBRBREERE REER (@

Market risks (continued) S AR (&)
Currency risk (continued) () EXmEEE s
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BTT BT
HKS o (610,000) (3,607,000)
Us$ £5 (540,000) (535,000)

(i)

The balances of bank deposits denominated in
foreign currencies fluctuated throughout the year and
in management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on bank deposits and bank balances which carry
at prevailing market interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy. However,
the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in
variable rate bank deposits and bank balances at the
year end.

(i)
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1.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risks (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to the bank deposits and bank
balances which bear floating interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. A 10 basis points (2013: 10
basis points) increase or decrease is used to present
management assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates for those balances mainly
denominated in RMB and HK$ at the year end.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2013: 10 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2014 would increase/decrease approximately
by HK$427,000 (2013: HK$426,000).

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & ZE _F—MFE=/F=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

7. ERITEw®w

b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEEKBEERSRBER @)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) e AR (&)
Total
Less than 3 months undiscounted Carrying
3 months to1year  cashflows amount
=R RERRE
PR=MER -5 RERE fRE(E
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT BT
As at 31 March 2014 R-B-ME=R=+—H
Trade and other payables R IR ELA AR 16,561,982 376979 16,938,961 16,938,961
Amount due to a related company e —FEEEARFE 1,463,087 - 1,463,087 1,463,087
18,025,069 376,979 18,402,048 18,402,048
Total
Less than 3months  undiscounted Carrying
3 months to 1 year cash flows amount
=B XURRE
PR=MEA E-F  NERE BRAEE
HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2013 R=B-==A=1+—-H
Trade and other payables FEMIRT R EMERTR 14,568,896 376979 14945875 14945875
Amount due to a related company e —FE@B A EFIE 926,236 - 926,236 926,236
Dividend payable to non-controlling ERERRERZRE
shareholders 28,016,609 - 28016609 28,016,609
43,511,741 376979 43888720 43,888,720
c. Fairvalue c. QAREE

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their corresponding fair values.

ARBEFRR, REGHMBR
RPRBHEAARIRZ ERHEE
kA EZ REESYEEERE
ZRREERE,
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SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ_F—IF=F=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the managing director of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the types of goods delivered. Before the completion of the
Asset Swap, the Group had three operating and reportable segments:
pharmaceutical and biotechnology business, mineral resources
business as well as packaging and printing business.

As explained in note 1, the mineral resources business and
packaging and printing business were classified as discontinued
operations during the year ended 31 March 2012. Upon completion
of the Asset Swap in 2013, the Group focuses on pharmaceutical
and biotechnology business and the CODM reviews the financial
performance of this business as a whole for allocating resources
and assessing performance. Since then, the Group has only one
operating segment. In addition, the CODM is of the opinion that the
presentation of assets and liabilities in accordance with the operating
segments is not meaningful as the CODM monitors the Group’s
assets and liabilities as a whole which is more efficient and effective.
Accordingly, no segment assets and liabilities are presented. The
segment information reported below does not include any amounts for
those discontinued operations, which are presented in note 12.

Other than the revenue analysis as set out in note 8(e), no operating
results and other discrete financial information relating to major
products is prepared regularly for internal reporting to the CODM for
resources allocation and performance assessment.

KA 73 ERE #L

RRBRDEERRFEIEBREME
AR ESEREE AEREERRKE)
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RERERDEERIGHERBEM2 RS
RZEBZMBRE. Bit, A&EEE
B—EZEDE, L, TEEERE
ERHIREERREREEEALEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ _F—IFE=F=1+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. WARDEER @
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DERWAREELE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTAAREERBHELCESER
from continuing operations. 2N ZEE T
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
B BIT
REVENUE - EXTERNAL W\ — 4R 247,173,069 180,213,975
SEGMENT PROFIT PEREEF 59,794,405 59,018,735
Other income HmgN 5,992,416 3,529,762
Other gains and losses Hitas k518 (4,033,335) 3,163,155
Unallocated expenses KABZH (12,804,140) (14,952,641)
Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ FEPRBFHBKEER 2 @7 48,949,346 50,759,011
The accounting policies of the operating segment are the RENE 2 Gt BRI ET4RTAR
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. AEBEZ EFBERAR. 288%
Segment profit represents the profit after taxation earned by F4E 2 EOPTBRE Z PRI B A A,
the segment without allocation of central administration costs, KRB RITEEA, EEH
directors’ salaries, certain other income, and other gains and Bl o T LAt I N e B I A R
losses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the BB, WERDE RFRRLT
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. s, WhRRNEIFELEERKES

HzEtEAN.
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8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

(b)

Other segment information

W K D ERE R )

(b) HfthsrEBER

2014
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business  Unallocated Total
BRI KR4 act
HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT
Amount included in the measure of segment HEMENSRERR I HEE
profit or loss or segment assets Fist A2 28
Additions of property, plant and equipment NEME. BEkRE 33,128,635 79,680 33,208,315
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME. BERRENE 5,241,661 465,836 5,707,497
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BAHE AN 3,163,422 = 3,163,422
Loss on disposaliwrite off of property, HE MEHE. BERREZ
plant and equipment BiE 4,131,634 4,315 4,135,949
Write off of intangible assets WHEREE 12,828 = 12,828
Reversal of impairment loss recognised on inventories (8| B REAE S RIEGE 41,170 = 411,170
Interest income FIEWA 1,467,815 4,426,697 5,894,512
Income tax Fisi 15,477,210 - 15,477,270
2013
Pharmaceutical
and
biotechnology
business Unallocated Total
REEMER RN EEH)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Amount included in the measure of segment BN RN NEER N EE
profit or loss or segment assets HAZEE
Additions of property, plant and equipment REME. BEREE 2,870,518 3,293,691 6,164,209
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y%, BELRETE 3,806,116 325,346 4,131,462
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BTG SIEEH 1,843,728 - 1,843,728
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME. BEREZEZ
plant and equipment B8 () 193,564 (3,801) 189,763
Interest income FIEBA 794,077 3,524,671 4,318,748
Income tax Fiisis 12,097,888 - 12,097,888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BEZ _F—IFE=F=1+—HIFE

8.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Geographical information
The Group principally operates in the PRC (country of
domicile), Hong Kong and Australia.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales
from continuing operations by geographical market based on
the location of operations irrespective of the origin of goods/
services.

The Group’s revenue from external customers from continuing
operations and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

8. WAKRDPEER @)

(c)

AEBEERNTE (EEREE
K). BBREAAEEEER,

TRRBEBIERERAEE
EiENS (TwE R/ RBZRK
R Bl 2 B EEBIHED
#ro

AEBRBIMIBERZHERE
EBWANREHRERAEH®E
Eln 2 EREBEEERFFET
WwE

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMBERZIBA FRBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AT BT BT BT
The PRC (country of domicile) HE (REMERR) 244,494,845 180,141,982 413,932,410 410,332,781
Hong Kong 58 317,056 71993 3,139,655 5,039,169
Australia RAFEE 2,361,168 - 11,599,391 12,653,390
247,173,069 180,213,975 428,671,456 428,025,340

Information about major customer

Revenue from a major customer which accounts for 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations are as
follows:

(d)

FRXERRZER
REMAEEFELEEEBIRA
0IUEZ—BEFBERERZI
NERFIANT

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue from customer attributable to BEmAYERBEERRA
pharmaceutical and biotechnology products:
Company A AFIA N/A FE 20,606,868

1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
sales of the Group.
f RN B AR E SRR 10%.
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. WARDEER @
(e) Revenue from major products ) EEERKA
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FHEREEE
Pharmaceutical and biotechnology products ~ BEZEAEY7E &
— Cerebroprotein hydrolysate injection — S RMERKEY 128,401,169 112,452,240
— Tuoping (Valsartan capsules) — T (FEEBE) 49,051,746 28,018,860
— Tuoen (Ibuprofen suspension and drops) — 1R (RS RERKEH) 26,212,905 11,690,349
— Others —Hth 43,507,249 28,052,526
247,173,069 180,213,975
9(a). OTHER INCOME 9(a). EMUN
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FHRICERH
Interest income on bank deposits RITEAFEBA 5,894,512 4,318,748
Investment income from available-for-sale AHEEREZRERA
investment 1,529,645 1,534,918
Investment income from foreign exchange INERSIIRE ZIREWA
linked investment 758,946 -
Release of government grants in relation to HETEERNBUNHE
certain assets (note 24) (PrfE24) 1,090,070 362,898
Reversal of impairment loss recognised BEERRTEREESE
on inventories 411,170 -
Government grants (note) TR (BEE) 705,912 342,601
Management fee income from a related —EREEATZEEEIRA
company (note 33(b)) (FF=E33(b)) 578,928 -
Others Hith 444,687 298,670
11,413,870 6,857,835
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2014, a PRC subsidiary received an fEE: REEZF—NF=A=+—HLHF

amount of approximately HK$706,000 (2013: HK$343,000) to recognise
the eminent brand of pharmaceutical and biotechnology products.

Em, —EAEEREERIELS
706,00078 7T (ZF — =4 : 34300078
TO) UREBELY ERZE LML,
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9(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

o(b). EAthl s Kk EsiE

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FEICEER
Exchange (loss) gain ER (B8 KH (586,157) 2,873,066
Loss on disposal/write off of property, HE MEEYE. KEX
plant and equipment BiEZEE (4,135,946) (189,763)
Write off of intangible assets BB M (12,828) -
(4,734,931) 2,683,303
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. PSRt
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
AT BIT
Continuing operations FERERER
Current tax: BNHEATRIE :
PRC enterprise income tax PE{ERTER 16,085,665 12,213,646
Withholding tax EHR - 3,424,252
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBEERE
PRC enterprise income tax PRI EEFRSH (234,194) (1,292,617)
Deferred tax (note 26): BRI (FIEE26)
Current year rEE (374,201) (2,247,393)
15,477,270 12,097,888

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and is not
subject to any income tax.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profit arising in,
or derived from, Hong Kong for both years.

The tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group is 25%, except
Yunnan Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical Co., Limited (‘Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical”) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) Limited
(“Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)’), subsidiaries of the Group.

ARBERASHSEMIL, BHEAEM
MIEMPATSHR

REFEERN, FENGHRZGER
Bua M DA 16 5% 5 B o HIRMI{EF
EASEEEREBELEIREETEZ
FERRTURA, B EEHEBNSHRE
o

FRAEEZ B AR ERmBEEERR
NE) (TRAEZRER ) RRKREX (KB B
RAB) (TRAREZE(FRE) )5, FEEH
PRI B AT 2R E325%,
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is established in the Kunming economic
open zone. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical is engaged in Western China
Development and was entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%
for both years. Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) are qualified as
advanced technology enterprises and have obtained approvals from
the relevant tax authorities for the applicable tax rate reduced to 15%
for a period of 3 years up to 2015.

The corporate tax rate applicable to the subsidiary of the Company
established and operating in Australia is 30% for both years. No
provision for the Australian income tax has been provided as the
Group had no taxable profit arising in Australia for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 26. The income tax
expense for both years can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

10.

Frisfi @)

BEEENBREERZERMIL, R
PEMERAERNER, BEEXSN
PEIFERRFEE, WRAMEFENEEE
BHENE%, RAEE (B TESH
KifTEEER, BSHERRBHREAE
BRAZMERERE, ABE=F, H
EEB-AFR/IL

RPEFEERN, BRERAATREAF
DR REEZ BRI ZEERES
30%. BRI SR B FE W {8 4 2 3 R 7 R
RFEELEERGET), SRR
AT,

BIERRIR 2 FEHNM 26, MEEE
ZARRX GG R R H e ER
mRZERRBENEERAT

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations HHEICEER
Profit before tax BRI RTRF 64,426,616 62,856,899
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2014 #HE_ZF—NER"F—=%F
and 2013 ZAZ+—HIEFEZRER25% 16,106,654 15,714,225
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEFERKE ZRBAR
operating in other jurisdictions RN iE S = 854
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax RBEMES AR 2 RBETE
purpose 826,771 24,722
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose ~ FAIRTET S BEZMIMN 2 R & (1,284,192) (2,210,241)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEDRBEEZMBETE 5,607,553 4,870,549
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised  BIFEBEKRFER 2 RIEEE (2,516,163) (1,990,941)
Tax effect on deductible temporary differences  BERERAIIRERKIEER
previously not recognised nExeE (43,553) -
Effect of tax concession grant to PRC subsidiaries %% FEIE A SRIBEER < 52 (6,529,780) (6,636,823)
Overprovision in prior years PR EE 2 BEEE (234,194) (1,292,617)
Withholding tax of income generated from FEIE AR EE R ZBHR
the PRC subsidiaries 3,287,751 3,197,289
Others Hth 256,423 420,871
Income tax expense for the year AEEFEHRYE 15,477,270 12,097,888
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1.

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. REEEH
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FEICEER
Profit for the year has been arrived at after REREHENR
charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EEME (FIEE13) 360,167 360,000
Other staff costs Htt8TRA
Salaries and other benefits FreRkEMmET] 43,936,106 31,146,193
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIHEIfAER 3,498,835 3,268,541
Total staff costs BT RALEE 47,795,108 34,774,734
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FBNTEERIE 2 3,163,422 1,843,728
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETENE 1,220,817 1,295,723
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAXHZEERAR (B
(including capitalisation of amortisation of 122201918 7T (ZF—=%:
intangible assets of HK$12,220,191 6,577,4267870) BIVEEZ
(2013: HK$6,577,426)) BB AL 88,692,492 56,181,034
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M., BEKRERTE 5,707,497 4,131,462

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into the Asset Swap
Agreement with Tianda Group to dispose of its entire equity interests
of subsidiaries and the shareholder’s loan involved in its packaging
and printing business and mineral resources business (collectively
known as the “Disposal Group”) at a consideration of HK$302,200,000
in aggregate (“Disposal Consideration”, comprising of a disposal
consideration for mineral resources business of HK$14,200,000
and a disposal consideration for packaging and printing business
of HK$288,000,000), in exchange for its ultimate holding company,
Tianda Group’s, 100% equity interest in certain subsidiaries which
are engaged in the manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products (collectively known as the “Acquisition Group”
or “Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group”) and its shareholder’s loan at a
total consideration of HK$380,000,000 (“Acquisition Consideration”)
in aggregate. The shortfall between the Acquisition Consideration
and the Disposal Consideration of HK$77,800,000 was settled by
cash. The acquisition and disposal are considered as major and
connected transactions. Details of the transactions were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 30 May 2012.

12. BRIEKEXRE

ATEFE—"F=A=+H, AAFH
AREBINEEBE RS, UER
1&302,200,00078 ¢ (THEFBERE,,
EhEFEHEBRERREEZRE
14,200,000 8 T & HE B EERIEZE 2
X {E288,000,00087T) HEHERKES
HERIEBRIEERREZRHRBEAT
(GRBTHEMER ) 22T AR &
RER, BRRERKEZERATRAER
RETHEEERIHEREEYERE
BB E (FE T EAR TR
KREHEE ) Z100%RAER R ER
REMR, #AES7380,000,000547T
("WEEERED) . ARFARUREX
FWEEERERINESEREZER
77,800,000/ T, WMEEERHESE
BRATERRERS . ZERGHEE
FRAABARA_S——_FHA=1+
HZ @R W,
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12.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 12. BRIEKEXS @
The transaction was completed on 31 August 2012. The results of REBERBE——E/)\A=+—H%=
the Disposal Group up till the completion date of the transaction o HEAREERSTERHEAZESE
are accounted for as discontinued operations in the consolidated REE_B—=F=-H=+—HUIEFE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the ZEREEEkEMEEKERAIIERIE
year ended 31 March 2013. BRI REER,
The profit for the year from the discontinued operations was analysed RE BRI G 7 RKEE DT
as follows: W
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Profit of packaging and printing business BUESENRI R 2 a7 = 7,966,595
Profit of mineral resources business HEE RER 3T 2 Al = 1,087,357
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net of transaction HEKBARZ KR, MRXS
costs and taxes (Note 30(c) & (d)) BUAN B ARIR (FtEE30(c) B (d)) = 7,882,808
Profit for the year from discontinued operations ~ RE B I EEER 2 AEEGZT) - 16,936,760
Profit for the year from discontinued operations ~ REERIEEEERZREE
attributable to: HFERER
Owners of the Company ANEIRE - 13,364,921
Non-controlling interests E[Za) g g = 3,571,839

- 16,936,760
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' 13, &Z=E., FETRAERESHS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFEREFETHRAEME
The emoluments of the directors and the chief executive on a BEUELHNZEERFETH
name basis are as follows: AEMIEWT :
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE_F—NMF=A=+—HL
FE
Other emoluments
H it
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HFER BAKET
& HihiEd  EME  Mess
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Fang Wen Quan** FX A 60,000 - = 60,000
Liu Huijiang* 2gE 60,000 - - 60,000
Lui Man Sang* (appointed on BX4E (RZIF—=F
30 September 2013) NA=1+BESRT) 30,167 - - 30,167
Li Suiming* (resigned on TR (R_8—=%
30 September 2013) NB=1+HEHT) 30,000 - - 30,000
Chiu Sung Hong R 60,000 - - 60,000
Chiu Fan Wa = 60,000 - - 60,000
Lam Yat Fai N=p 60,000 - - 60,000
360,167 - - 360,167
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

13. BEX. TETHRAEBREEME
(&)

() EFREERTHARME @
BE—_F—=—F=A=+—HIt

FE
Other emoluments
HithiE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

Fek EBINMET
e EftEd  FEMER MERE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Fang Wen Quan** TR 60,000 - - 60,000
Li Suiming* ZfHER* 60,000 - - 60,000
Liu Huijiang® 2@ 60,000 - — 60,000
Chiu Sung Hong HER 60,000 - - 60,000
Chiu Fan Wa e EE 60,000 - - 60,000
Lam Yat Fai wEE 60,000 - - 60,000
360,000 - - 360,000

* Executive directors * HITES

# Chief executive

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

(b) Employees’ emoluments
During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2014, of the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none
was a director of the Company whose emolument is included
in the disclosures in note (a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining five individuals were as follows:

# FETRAER

BHE_F-NFER-F—=F=
B=+—HILEFE, LEEEK
EEMIE.

(b) (RSEE
REBEZF-—=FR-F-NF
ZR=+—HLEE, A&HA
AREHFMALTES, BEEA
ALTRERAEE, HMEEHE
EXBFE (@) E. HEgARAL

ZE&T
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 5,009,070 4,074,944
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIREFIFTEIH R 43,750 43,500

5,052,820 4,118,444
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13.

14.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND EMPLOYEES' 13, ZEE. FTETHAENREEMS

EMOLUMENTS (continued) €=)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b)
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RS (@
REZMENFUTEHEN

2014 2013

No. of employees  No. of employees

EE#E EEHE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 FHEITTE,000,0007E7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000 7T 2 2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors and five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

RWMEEERN, AEEITEDE
ERABRESH A 3B
&, UEARSEMAREEIR

office. AN 6 BB 2 B2 B 3 1 7% B Bk
=,
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BRERE
From continuing and discontinued operations REFEEERERILIEERR
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the $ﬁﬁﬁ§$ﬁ§f£ﬂ§%$@ﬂﬁ$ﬁ?}§?
owners of the Company is based on the following data: SIBER
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Earnings &7l
Earnings for the purpose of basic earmings STEEREARFFAZET]
per share 22,049,566 37,740,062
Number of shares BireE
Number of ordinary shares in issue for the STEEREARIFEZ

purpose of basic earnings per share EETEBRRNEE

1,870,118,160 1,870,118,160
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14.  BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations
The calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

14.

BIREAREF @)

REFAEEERE
AR RREEFECEEBERER
BN HRBE TSRS

data:
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of A EI R EE(LAEE T
the Company 22,049,566 37,740,062
Less: profit for the year from discontinued o ERIEEERB AFE R
operations - 13,364,921
Profit for the purpose of basic earnings per share B ERELEGRERET)
from continuing operations FRAZ i #) 22,049,566 24,375,141

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company did not
have any dilutive shares in issue during both years.

15.  DIVIDENDS

The final dividend of HK0.24 cent per share amounting to
HK$4,488,284 in aggregate in respect of the year ended 31 March
2014 has been proposed by the directors and is subject to the
approval by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting.

The final dividend of HK0.41 cent per share in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK0.47 cent per
share) had been proposed by the directors and was approved by the
shareholders at Annual General Meeting. Dividends with aggregate
amount of HK$7,667,484 (2012: HK$8,789,555) were paid and were
recognised as distribution during the year ended 31 March 2014 (2012:
year ended 31 March 2013).

15.

FRRFTES 2 MEEEN, AREHE

AR TEEEER 2Ky, W&
Eﬁljﬁﬁxitgﬁ/—rmﬂJ o

iz 2
EREENEBE_SNE=RA=1—

B 1k ER SR I i B &2 1% 0.247841L,
E£4,488,28478 7T, MEARRRBEX
GEREE, TAFE.

EEESMEEZS—=F=A=1+—
H1EFEIRERARE SR04
(ZB—ZF . REKRESKR4THE
i), TERKREBFREG LERRE
M, BRESIHEET6748458TT (=
T—TF 87895558 T0) REBIZEZF
—E=A=+—HIEFE(CZ—=
F o H#EE—="F=-A=+—HI*F
) BRI HER A D TRo
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y. BEKRKE

Furniture,
Plantand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
Tz HE A %8
BF RiE  WERRE RixfE RE  EEIE e
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT B BT BT B BT
CosT 7.8
At1 April 2012 RZE—_FMA—H 19420714 17,231,733 248045 3469213 2852838 - 45455014
Exchange realignment ERAEZ 2,261,681 403,051 - 45,053 89,485 - 2799270
Additions hE - 2,108,044 1546913 1,736,020 1713232 - 6,164209
Acquired on acquisition of WERBARREA
subsidiaries (note 30(a)) (PIZE30(a) 83454756 5,549,629 - 303482 2,159,738 - 91547605
Acquired on acquisition of WEEBREA
business (note 30(b)) (FiFEE30(0)) - - - 121,785 - - 121,785
Disposalshurtien-off e /i - (81475 (248045 (19749)) - - (85940
At 31 March 2013 and A_F-Zf£=R=+-H
1 April 2013 RZE-ZHMB—H 105137151 25110982 1546913 5558121 5875293 - 143,228,460
Exchange realignment ERRE - (5,366) - (21,557) (2223) (9308  (1227%9)
Additions hE - 1884116 - 1,07843% 616,048 29,629,716 33,208,315
Disposalsfriten-of HE /s - (11,080464) - M) - - (251)
At 31 March 2014 WoB-MESA=+-B 10507151 15008768 1546913 653950 640118 2953663 1651925%
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZRitifE
At 1 April 2012 A_B5-_#MNA-H 7680305 9,299,662 2480456 2108858 1,887,436 - 23456717
Exchange realignment ERAZ 124,406 165,501 - 19,634 32620 - 342,161
Provided for the year FEERE 1,082,350 1,970,888 77,346 627,927 372,951 - 4131462
Eliminated on disposalsfwritien-off & /iS4 - - (2480456)  (189.204) - - (2,669,660)
At 31 March 2013 and RZE-=£=F=1-H
1 April 2013 RZ5-=#MF—AH 8,887,061 11,436,051 71346 2567215 2,293,007 - 25,260,680
Exchange realignment ERRAE (5,032) (7.424) - (2,933) (1,732) - (17.121)
Provided for the year FEERE 1601630 2363078 154,691 918,191 669,907 - 5707497
Eliminated on disposalsfritien-off & / Hishi 15 - (6.954947) - (30,620) - - (6,985,57)
At 31 March 2014 RZB—ME=RA=+—H 10483659 6,836,758 232,037 3451853 2,961,182 - 23965489
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 RIB—MEZRA=+—H 94653492 9072010 1314876 3122097 3527936 29,536,634 141,227,045
At 31 March 2013 AZE-ZEZA=+-H 96250090 13674931 1469567 2,990,906 3,582,286 - 117,967,780

The buildings, which are situated on leasehold land held under
medium-term leases, are located in the PRC.

RPRBENFEZEE T M F218FY
IR,
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16.

17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. Y%, BEAFE @
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on LR, BERZREEEDUERE
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: BT ERGHEITE
Buildings 3%—-10% Ji-t=s 3%-10%
Plant and machinery 5%-10% U K e 5%-10%
Leasehold improvements 10%-33.33% or the term HEY S 10%-33.33%5%
of the lease, if shorter THEH (KRR
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20% RE, BEENKRE 10%-20%
Motor vehicles 10%-20% RE 10%-20%
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. FEMHENRIE
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Prepaid lease payments for medium-term URAPEz PEIEE 32 T
leasehold land in the PRC: HERE :
Included in current assets BERREEEN 3,153,484 3,153,484
Included in non-current assets BERERESEEN 87,608,473 90,761,957
90,761,957 93,915,441

Prepaid lease payments are released to profit or loss over the lease
terms of 40 to 50 years.

FRNEEFIER0E0FHEHANERE
mIRAEERo

GOODWILL 18. BE
Meng Tianda Tianda
Sheng Pharmaceuticals Pharmaceuticals
Pharmaceutical (Australia) (Zhuhai) Total
RRER RRER
BERX  (BRKAD) (%i8) wE
HKS HKS$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT B BT
cOoST B
At1 April 2012 RZE-_FMA—A 6,587,152 - - 6,587,152
Exchange realignment ERRE 87,741 - 2493073 2,580,814
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 30(a)) ~ RUIKEEMBARIKEE (330() - - 09894629 99,894,629
Arising on acquisition of business, as restated REBEBREL, KET
(Note 2830(b)) (¥zE25%30(0) - 2,886,305 - 2,886,305
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RIB-Z£=ZA=+-HK
—3-=FNR-H 6,674,893 2886305 102,387,702 111,948,900
Exchange realignment ERAZ - (330,438) (264) (330,702)
At 31 March 2014 RZB-ME=A=+-H 6,674,893 2,555,867 102,387,438 111,618,198
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18.

GOODWILL (continued)

The goodwill amounting to HK$111,618,198 at 31 March 2014 (2013:
HK$111,948,900) and intangible assets amounting to HK$86,161,275
(2013: HK$98,765,832) respectively at 31 March 2014 has been
allocated to three (2013: three) cash generating units (the “CGU"), (1)
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical, (2) Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai)
and (3) Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia). All of which are engaged
in the sales of pharmaceuticals and biotechnology products and
healthcare products.

For the CGUs of Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and Meng Sheng
Pharmaceutical, the recoverable amount of the CGUs arising from
Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical
was determined based on value in use calculations. The value
in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period
and a pre-tax discount rate of 13.66% (2013: 12.66%) for Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) and 12.32% (2013: 12.32%) for Meng
Sheng Pharmaceutical, respectively. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate for both
CGUs. The key assumption is budgeted revenue and gross margins
determined based on past performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amounts of both CGUSs.

For the CGU of Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia), Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has operating loss for the year ended 31
March 2014 and management performed impairment assessment for
Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia). The recoverable amount of the
CGU arising from Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) is determined
based on value in use calculations. The value in use calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering five-year period and a pre-tax discount rate
of 15.67% (2013: nil) for Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3%
growth rate for the CGU. The key assumption is budgeted revenue
and gross margins determined based on the past performance
and the management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate amounts of the
CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

The management of the Group determines that there is no impairment
of the three CGUs containing goodwill and intangible assets.

18.

GBESC)

FREAERmS, RZE—ME=1
=+—HBHAE11161818B T (ZF

=4 1 111,948,900/87C) ZEERNRZ
F—NE=H=+—H%%86,161,275
BIT(ZT—=4 : 9876583238 7T) 2

BREECHEE=E(CE—=F
=E)REELESBM : ()VBREEE, (2

RREEZE (RB) R (B)RAZESE CRAF)
), MEREIREBEEYERK
RREMEEES,

AREER BRE) R BEEE L RGE
ABUMS, EEBEHRREE(GR
8 RBAEREZEITRENE, KEX
REXE(CRB) MBEEXCHEELE
AR El B R EREENE A
EE. EREERETAHRKESR
(KB RAREERERERFH

Bz MEBEERRRIIITRESBA
13.66% (ZZ— =% : 12.66%) K 12.32%
(CE—=F : 1232%) stEZRERE

yEH, MERESEEEMNAFHEEER
ZEEREWHANZEEEREME
HEE, FERERDBRUAERRERERE
Bz iz EEaE Z?Eﬁ”&(]\&%
M, EBERE, TAZFEHED

H:'EEZEHAIE“EM—QEFWEEQFE
gﬁuzﬁﬁﬁwfﬁfﬂjﬁ—ﬂiﬁl%%ﬁ%

FARREEZE CRAM D) 2 IREELEN
ME, HRRAZESECRAHD) REE
—B-NFE=B=+—HILEFEEREK
LEEMEREHRAESE (RAR D)
ETRER . RERXAZERE CRAF
) 2R E LB ARSI E
REEAETAEE, EREEHES
ERAHEEEERERL TR
MBRERERRAITIRE1567% (ZF
—Z=F . B)FABEZRERNEFE, ]
TEABMVRAFHERZESRER
KA ZBERRRFLER. T8
B RaERBEREEE 2 Ti5%E
BAEE 2 ARERARENER, EEE
1815, EIZERRATAE ﬁIEZEﬂA
B A EBUIREEL B 2 RER
EBHEPTIREIE AR,

AEEEEEETHENR —AREE
LR (BERERENEE) ZREH,
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B|EE
Licenses and
Trademark permits Total

BIE HEBRGTAE st

HKS HK$ HK$

BT BT BT
COST BE
At1 April 2012 R-Z-_&#WA—H - - -
Exchange realignment FER AR 186 2,246,322 2,246,508
Avising of acquistton of subsidiaries (note 30(a)) BB ATES (HEE30) 1887 93502847 93604734
Avising of acquisition of business (note 30(b)) WEEERFTESE (HEE300) 7,414,161 2,206,854 9,621,015
Additions NE 2,416 - 2416
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RIBE-—=E=B=1+—HkK

A_BE—=FA—H 7,428,650 98,046,023 105,474,673
Exchange realignment R (850,715) (256,840)  (1,107,555)
Additions NE 51,768 643,548 695,316
Written off of intangible assets b Cickigi A= (12917) - (12917)
At 31 March 2014 N-E—ME=A=+—H 6,616,786 98,432,731 105,049,517
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION ]
At 1 April 2012 R-FE—-_&FWA—H - - -
Exchange realignment R 1 131414 131415
Provided for the year REERE 99 6,577,327 6,577,426
At 31 March 2013 and RZB—=%=R=1+—-HK
1 April 2013 A_E—-=FNA—H 100 6,708,741 6,708,841

Exchange realignment ER A (1) (40,690) (40,701)
Provided for the year AEEERE - 12,220,191 12,220,191
Witten off of intangible assets iR A (89) - (89)
At 31 March 2014 RZF—NE=A=1+—-H - 18,888,242 18,888,242
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 March 2014 RZF—NE=A=1+—H 6,616,786 79,544,489 86,161,275
At 31 March 2013 RZIB—=%=F=1+—H 7,428,550 91,337,282 98,765,832

Intangible assets mainly represent i) various licenses and
permits acquired by the Group through the acquisition of Tianda
Pharmaceuticals Group on 31 August 2012 as set out in note
30(a) with carrying amount at 31 March 2014 of approximately
HK$77,630,000 and ii) trademark and permits acquired in the
acquisition of business from Cynergy Group on 12 March 2013
as set out in note 30(b) with carrying amount at 31 March 2014 of
approximately HK$6,617,000 and HK$1,914,000, respectively.

BVEEIER)AEEZANR_-F

——HF/)\A=1+—HKERKREXEH
FRERZzETHRNTAIE, #EHR
RKEE30@), R-F—ME=A=+—
H Z BRE{E49477,630,000787T ; Kii) 1Y
— & —=%= B+ HMECynergy Group
WEEBRPMNE 2 BHERFIE,
SEBEENMEE0D), RZF—ME=8
=t+—HZRHE{EDR141%6,617,0007%
761,914,000 7T
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) has obtained medicine production
licenses and permits that used to manufacture and sell the medicine
and drugs. The licenses and permits are granted by Guangdong Food
and Drug Administration and subject to renewal every 5 years. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the licenses and permits
can be renewed by the Group without significant cost. Amortisation
is provided to write off the cost of the licenses and permits using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the licenses and
permits of 8 years.

For the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013, the management of
the Group determined that there is no indicator for impairment for the
licences and permits held by Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group.

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has obtained permits that used
to manufacture and sell the healthcare products. The permits are
granted by Therapeutic Goods Administration, Australia and subject
to renewal every year. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the permits can be renewed by the Group without significant cost.
Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of permits using the
straight line method over the estimated useful life of permits of 5
years.

The trademark included several brand names acquired from Cynergy
Group which allow the Group to produce products under those brand
names. The trademark acquired during the year ended 31 March
2013 amounting to HK$7,414,161 is treated as having indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows to
the Group indefinitely. Therefore, it is not amortised until its useful life
is determined to be finite. It would be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. Tianda
Pharmaceuticals (Australia) has operating loss for the year ended 31
March 2014 and management performed impairment assessment on
intangible assets (both with finite and indefinite useful life) and they
have been allocated to the CGU representing Tianda Pharmaceuticals
(Australia). Details are set out in note 18.

19

EEE (&)

RAER () ERSARREREE
EYMERZ EREERNRRET &,
PRLFIEHERERmEREEE
BEEitH, ABAFEN. AREES
oy, AEEFMBAXNEAERE
AEEZEFRRKAAIE, BIEEET
RN PIRE Z bt IR/
T PY 5 F B 40 S 0 BR R 5T P 78
Ao

BE_T—NEFE-_F—=5Z=A8
=+—HLEFE, AEEEEERAX
REEEEBETA R KT P2 R
EIFR.

RAEEZE (CRAF ) EBSEFARE, B
RESERIHERBEER, FTRZRHAR
X FJ 58 Therapeutic Goods Administration 1tk
H, BREEE, AR BEERR, &
SETUBAXMERERMIEEZ
. EHBEANRFE
R AF A FENFERAEAREEERT
Bl %N

FIZ B $E B Cynergy Group B = % (B @
[, BAEEIUZEREEAREEE
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19.

20.

21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. BREE @
For the year ended 31 March 2013, for the purposes of impairment BE_E—="F=-"H=1+—HIEER
testing of the intangible assets held by Tianda Pharmaceuticals KAREEZ R FiisEEREEZ
(Australia), the management of the Group determined that there is BENRMES, AEEEERER AR
no impairment as the carrying amount approximated the recoverable BE, TTHRZEFETLEE ZRAENA
amount determined by reference to fair value less cost to sell. AR EIEE (BEEAAEBEBLEE
HAEE) BE,
INVENTORIES 2. 78
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
AT BT
Raw materials IEaE ) 13,440,509 14,756,717
Work in progress EES 3,918,775 6,192,314
Finished goods R 11,452,499 12,360,657
28,811,783 33,309,688

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21. FEWNEEH REWEE K i fE

RECEIVABLES IR
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade and bills receivables FEW AR FE N 18 36,863,437 23,158,958
Prepayments to suppliers EHAER A FUE 2,001,474 1,823,666
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HthEWE. BeREMNFE 5,723,790 2,147,417
Total trade and bills receivables and FEWTBR TR W 2 4 e EAth
other receivables FEWRAERE 44,588,701 27,130,041
The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to its trade AEBATFORNTEHEERTHES
customers. ZR.
Included in the carrying value of trade and bills receivables as AZFE—WNFE=ZA=+—H, EBK
at 31 March 2014 is bills receivables of HK$23,873,948 (2013: RARERZBZREEESEAH
HK$9,840,880). 23873048 BT 2 ENEE (ZB—=

£ 1 9,840,88077T) o
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21.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits of each customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year. All of the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have good
credit quality assessed by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,389,634 (2013:
HK$4,062,308) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered
recoverable based on historical experience.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is as follow:

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

21.

JEWER R & RN ZE 18 & H Mt &
KR ()

REMEMHES, AEEENEE
BRZEERETHE, ERESM
ERZEERE, EFAZZRESSE
FRE—Ro PIEREIEIIKRBIEZE
WERFIYEAREB T L2 RIFEER
o

REE 2 EBEIRR R ENE B &R EIE
BREES 3,389,634 8T (ZF—=4 :
4,062,30878 70) RR & HEEIHE 2 FE UK
IR, HRNEEERIIEEAEHAEHE
FARUERBEE LN A AR I,
Hith, AEE R ZERIEEHRE
1B EE,

AEEN ERZFERE B EAHKE
Mo A FEBERIRZ FIIARERINT

E BRI I RIRE 2 FE AR Z AR R

2014 2013

HK$ HK$

& BT

61-90 days 61E90K 713,922 2,242,320
Over 90 days HBIEI0R 2,675,712 1,819,988
3,389,634 4,062,308

The Group’s trade and bills receivables and other receivables
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are set out below:

AEEUREEEEZINEEELINZ
EIEZ BBERIUN B IR R R H At
FEWCERERSIANT

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HK$ BT 80,283 84,214
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22. BANKDEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22.

The bank deposits, which comprise short-term fixed deposits with
original maturity of 7 days to 6 months (2013: 1-6 months), carry
market interest rates ranging from 0.26% to 3.20% (2013: 0.18% to
2.60%) per annum.

Bank balances carry variable interest at market rates which range
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2013: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

The Group’s bank deposits, bank balances and cash that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are set out below:

IRITER. RITHERARE

RTER(BRERIBER/ETRENE
A(ZE—=%F: —EN@ER) 25EH
EHER) BHHEMNRNF026%E
3.20% (ZF— =% : 0.18%ZE260%) &t

/CNO

RITHERBENF00M%EI% (ZF
— =4 : 0.01%ZE0.35%) Z FEEFE
=8

AEENUSEEER ISR
BB ZIRITER. WITERKES
;AT :

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
HK$ BIT 18,864,601 108,096,007
US$ E 16,180,259 16,008,386
EUR Bt 8,143 9,196
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EAEREUREAMERR
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade payables [EHERTR 14,246,389 14,768,032
Deposits received from customers BERKIRZZE 11,863,159 12,466,497
Value added tax payables FEfHEETR 2,042,657 2,941,604
Other payables and accrued staff cost Hit AR R EFETHA 34,488,944 24,849,631
Total trade and other payables FEATBRR e E At FE (T R AR R 62,641,149 55,025,764
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23.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23. ENERFRREAMEN K @
The following is an analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the end AREBZEMEFRBESEHR Z 2
of the reporting period: W
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade payables (note) FEATBRAR (FI5E)
Within 60 days 60K M 6,984,691 12,717,119
61-90 days 61E90K 1,372,904 448,915
Over 90 days [ EIFN 5,888,794 1,601,998
Total trade payables e BR AR EE 14,246,389 14,768,032
Note: The aging analysis of trade payables presented is based on the invoice BfisE © FEMERRZERE DT TIIRBRIREH
date at the end of the reporting period. RZBZEHHEMET.
Included in the trade payables at 31 March 2014, HK$6,858,885 (2013: A _E—UEFE=ZRB=+—HZEFMNEK
HK$6,232,435) has been paid by endorsed bills for which the maturity NEEEXRIPEEXINZEEZRE
date has not yet fallen due as at 31 March 2014 (see note 31). 6,858,885/8 70 (ZF—=4F : 6,232,435/&
70) (RMIEE31),
24, GOVERNMENT GRANTS 24. BUNEBEH
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2012 A_E—_F/MA—H 1,646,205
Exchange realignment ERRE 14,129
Credited to profit or loss FTAEH (362,898)
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 N_B—-=F=ZA=+—HK
“Z—-=FWBA—H 1,297,436
Exchange realignment PEREREE 1,168
Credited to profit or loss FFAER (1,090,070)

At 31 March 2014

R-B—-NE=RA=+—H 208,534
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24,  GOVERNMENT GRANTS (continued) 24.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

AT B )

M ESMELZHT

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Current liabilities* mEAE 208,534 370,696
Non-current liabilities FERBERE = 926,740
208,534 1,297,436

* The carrying amount of the government grants which is expected to be * BUG B Z BREEW D EAMENER,

released to profit or loss in the next twelve months is classified as current.
Note:

Grants were designated for the cost of acquisition of certain plant and equipment
for the production of a pharmaceutical and biotechnology product and were
deferred and are released to income on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful lives of the related assets.

THFREH AR+ B B P A B R .
F5E

ZEBMEERARBEE TREAYERLE
B2 ETHEREEZEAR, LERTERR
EREEZENEREHREREERA
L ONS

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. B&A
Number
of shares Amount
8B ok}
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREE0108TT 2 @R
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and RZEZE——_FMB—H. ZF—=F
31 March 2014 —B=+—HBxkZ&F—MmEF
=HA=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBTIERE :
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and RZFE——FMB—H., ZF—=F
31 March 2014 =B=t+—AxZ&F—M%F
=A=1+—H 1,870,118,160 187,011,816
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26.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and

26. EELEMRIBAE

REERUEFERERZ ERRLERIE

movements thereon during the current and prior years: EE&ESEWNT ;
Fair value Withholding
adjustment tax on
of property,  Accelerated Prepaid distributable
plant and tax Tax lease  Intangible profit of
equipment  depreciation losses  payments assets  subsidiaries Total
Mx. BB EAE
RifEz AR
AREE  ERE AEE patil v
R e  REEE PE EBREE R we
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS
B B B BT BT B B
At 1 April 2012 RZF-_FMA-H - 199 (199) - - 1641120 1,641,120
Exchange realignment ERHE 98,426 - - 356,470 528,721 - 983,622
(Credit) charge to profit or loss  ZEBZM GEA) 1B (81,376) (199) 199 (294722)  (1,644332) 3197289 1,176,859

Reversal upon payment AREER -
Arising on acquisition of WERBARRES

- - - (34M25) (34225

subsidiaries (note 30(a)) (PE30(@)) 4,168,672 - - 15007622 23398212 - 42,664,506
Arising from acquisition of ~ WEEEHRELE,

business, as restated (note 2)  ARE 51 (HizE2) - - - - 2886305 - 2886305
At 31 March 2013 and RIB-=F

1 April 2013 =B=+—Bk

“$-ZHMA-H 4185721 - - 15159370 25,168,912 1414157 45,928,160

Exchange realignment ERHE 450 - - 1,625 (320,612) - (318,537)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss  ZEBZEP3 G A\) 1B (142,740) - - (516,957)  (3,002,255) 3,287,751 (374,201)
At31 March 2014 L

=ZA=t-H 4,043,431

- 14644038 21,846,045 4701908 45235422
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26.

27.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries that are tax resident in the PRC are subject
to the PRC dividend withholding tax of 5% or 10% for those non-PRC
resident immediate holding company registered in Hong Kong and the
British Virgin Islands, respectively, when and if undistributed earnings
are declared to be paid as dividends out of profits that arose on or
after 1 January 2008. Accordingly, a provision for deferred taxation in
respect of withholding tax on undistributed earnings of approximately
HK$47,019,000 (2013: HK$14,141,000) has been recognised for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$230,297,000 (2013: HK$207,856,037) available to offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Al
these losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group’s Hong Kong subsidiaries operate a Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contribution are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme. The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs
to the MPF Scheme up to a maximum contribution of HK$1,250 per
employee monthly, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$179,099 (2013:
HK$144,177) represents contributions paid to the MPF Scheme by
the Group in respect of the current year.

26.

27.

IRIETRTE & 18 (@)

AEBZWBEABRTRERLE, A
AP ERIE, MEREEREBHER
RESHMZIFFREEREEERAR
BERRADREFRKE, MERKET]
BEFF/\F—HF—HEZEBEELZF]
R, BIZATEI 2 B5%8510% .2 #
Bz EEilR. Fit, REEZZ—M
F=A=1+—HIEE, ERNEKIKE
M 2 AR HERR 447,019,000 T (ZF]
— =4 1 14,141,00077T) ZEIEFRIE
&,

A_F—ME=A=+—H, AX&H
AR R AT 2 KB AR IER
1842302970008 (ZF— =4 :
207,856,037 7T) o FHHNEEDLTEAIR 2R
A, B ERIEE BRI
MEEE, TEZSHEETERELS
=,

BIRFEFETE]

AEEREEWBABAEGERSH
BEE T8 2 BERLZ —HBGEIMER
EERAEMNFTE (TeEERTE). #t
R EEERFEZADLIEL, I
ERESRESAEZRAUBCFEER
PR,

BT EERAERZEEDH
A, THBIEBEESER, A5H
ZIREHTNENA FRERAER S
WES, AEEmRESEIFLERH
FENER 2%, eSS AHR
125038704 LR, B{eS 2 AR,

RIE RN IIER Z BRI 179,09978 JT
(ZB—=F 14 17TBT) IERFEER
@M RES BB 2 7R,
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27.

28.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continued) 27. BREFIFE @
The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members of AEERTEMBAT ZIES IR
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC NEEZBERBAREINFEIZRE. %
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified EWBATEEEITERNAZEEARD
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund EERLRIREFFHEIE R AR, AEE R
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Z EBARGBHNEHEIzE—SFETIAER
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. For HiIsEZzHH, BE-_FT—MNE=H
the year ended 31 March 2014, the total cost charged to profit or loss =t+—HILFE, REZENINRZLER
of HK$2,987,549 (2013: HK$4,280,222) represents contributions 72,987 5497870 (/B —=4 : 4,280,222
paid to the state-managed retirement benefit scheme by the Group in BT EAFEEASEMEZERET]
respect of the current year. IS Z R
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FECEER 2,987,549 3,124,364
Discontinued operations BRI = 1,155,858
2,987,549 4,280,222
OPERATING LEASE 28. HEEMHA
The Group as lessee AEEEAEBEA

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in respect of
office premises (including continuing and discontinued operations)
during the year amounted to HK$4,895,152 (2013: HK$5,325,868).

FNREERLFTHEERAEYEX
ZREEENE (BEFEMBERIER
BEEETE) 548951528 (B —=4F
5,325,868757T) o

2014 2013

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Continuing operations RERERXE 4,895,152 4,830,424
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER = 495,444
4,895,152 5,325,868
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28. OPERATING LEASE (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

28. REMHL @)

AEEEAREBEA(B)

NREEAR, AEERAN A2 K
HOAI Mz RRFRBEFIEAIE
mr

2014 2013

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —&ER 3,609,154 4,717,680
In the second to fifth year inclusive MEZREN (DIEEEME) - 3,609,154
3,609,154 8,326,834

Operating leases are negotiated for an average term of 3 years and
rentals are fixed over the relevant lease term.

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

RERNEERR I FHRIE,
Ml RAREAPNY BE E .

29. BARKIE

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of ~ FLE:TAERRNGE HHERR
property, plant and equipment contracted for BEZKEDE. BER
but not provided in the consolidated financial KRB EARFER
statements 13,407,024 16,886,529

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group

Pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement set out in notes
1 and 12, the Group acquired the 100% equity interest of
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group and a shareholder’s loan for
a total consideration of HK$380,000,000. The Acquisition
Consideration was determined based on the net present
value of the shareholder’s loan with principal amount of
HK$170,969,488 and the fair value of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group of HK$220,543,164 determined using income approach
based on the discounted cash flows. The acquisition had
been accounted for using the acquisition method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$99,894,629.

3. WEWBAE %%/ HEKES

AF)

(a)

SR KR EE

RIBM 1R 12FTEHEEB R
&, AHEEDAER{E380,000,00078
TUIEE R KEEEEE100% A1
mh—ERRER. WERED
A EE5170,969,48878 7T 2 IR ER
EXNEREEFERRKEEE
BUKEFREBESREEE
ZNFE(E220,543,164 8 TCEEE
WEEE LUK AR, WEBFTE
ERESEE 499,894,629/ 7T,
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF 30.
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

KWEWB AR %5/ HENEB

A

(a) Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued) (a)

Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group was principally engaged in
research, development, production and sales of pharmaceutical
and healthcare products in the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia.
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group was acquired to expand the
Group’s pharmaceuticals operations.

Assets acquired and liabilities of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group recognised at the date of acquisition on 31 August 2012
were as follows:

(8

IR REEEEE (5)
RREZEFEFTERTEH. T
FORAF B BB ERREEM
M. HE. EEREEEE.
KRR EXEEZ BN ER
REBEZBEXS,

Bz RREXEREERE
BEREUEHH_F——_F/\A
=+—BEROT :

Fair value
NHEE
HK$
BT
Net assets acquired gz EETFE
Property, plant and equipment M. BEKEE 91,547,605
Deposit for acquisition of property, WY, BEREE RS
plant and equipment 371,825
Prepaid lease payments ENBERE 89,572,608
Intangible assets EEE 93,604,734
Inventories wE 21,909,414
Trade and other receivables MR BR AR R EL At FE ISR 23,562,781
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 2,469,341
Bank balances and cash RITREBRKIRS 40,571,496
Trade and other payables FEfBRF R EL A FE TR (38,485,856)
Amounts due to related companies FERBIENTZRIE (2,354,071)
Loan from Tianda Group (note) KAEMIZH Y B2 (HzT) (159,456,836)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEE E (42,664,506)
120,648,535
Goodwill (note 18) A& (MiEE18) 99,894,629
Fair value of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group RABEXEANAEE 220,543,164
Assignment of loan to Tianda Pharmaceuticals EETRRELEB SR ()
Group (note) 159,456,836
380,000,000

Note: Loan to Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group with principal amount of
HK$170,969,488 was assigned by Tianda Group to the Group
pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement. The loan was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable when Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group had generated sufficient cash flows. The Company expected
the amount would be received in 3 years. Accordingly, the loan
had been adjusted to fair value by computing the present value
of estimated future cash flows at an effective interest rate of
5% per annum. The loan amount had been eliminated in these
consolidated financial statements.

FfisE -

RAEEEE B A EERAEN70,969,4887%
TZERTARKEERBEEER
BHREETAER. ERBEEIPL
TR, MAREXEBANELR
HREREBREEER, AAEHH
ARTERR=ZFRKE, #i, &
REEBRERHREE%TEMET
RRREREZBMEBEZTNRAE
EQREE, EREHEERFTEEY
BIRPIEH,
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued)
The property, plant and equipment includes office and factory
buildings, the prepaid lease payments represented a piece of
land located in the PRC with medium-term lease of 40 years
and the intangible assets represented primarily various licenses
and permits identified in Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group. The
fair value at 31 August 2012 had been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer, not connected to
the Group. The property, plant and equipment had been valued
on depreciated replacement cost approach. The land had been
valued on direct comparison approach, while the licenses and
permits had been valued on income approach.

The fair value of inventories at the date of acquisition
approximates to the selling price less cost of disposal and a
reasonable profit allowance.

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$23,562,781. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired
amounted to HK$23,694,864 at the date of acquisition. The
best estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash flows
not expected to be collected amounted to HK$132,083.

Pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement, Tianda Group
irrevocably warrants and guarantees to the Company that
the consolidated net profit after taxation as shown in the
consolidated financial statements of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group prepared under HKFRSs before the fair value
adjustments arisen from the acquisition will not be less than
HK$18,500,000 for the period commencing from 1 September
2012 to the date falling 12 months after such date. If the actual
consolidated net profit after taxation of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group is less than HK$18,500,000, then Tianda Group shall
pay to the Company in cash for the shortfall on a dollar to dollar
basis. The management had assessed the fair value of the
aforesaid contingent consideration on 31 August 2012 and 31
March 2013 and determined that the fair value is not significant.
As at 31 March 2014, Tianda Group did not require to pay the
shorfull to the Company as the consolidated net profit after
taxation for the guarantee period was achieved.

3. WEWBRE %%/ HEKES

INE] ()

(a)

WEB R KL B (@)

ME. BRERSREECERAE

BEEF ; AMEEREEAR
Rz —i8 i (RIE P ERFRAYIF
BU+F) REREE (FEEX
REXZEHEHNZETHERR
HAE), —B——F/)\A=1+—
HZARBEDERFPBEESE
THERERBRA R (AL &
B 2 BB B REEMER) R
EHFETZHEEE. YE.
BEREEUINEEERANEE
TEE. T EELBEET
fH1E, MR &R AR AR
EETEE

FERWBHBZAREERH
E BRI & AR R S I i 7 #6 Al
B’z EHEBEE,

REERE, BUWERRRHME
KR 2z 2 (B {8 7 23,562,781 78
TCo TMazF EWERTR E A B IR
ARUBHRZRBENEER
23,694,864 7870, NULEERH, T8
HEEROZaHNRENERE
5T #3132,083 7T,

REBEEERGE, RAKEH
ENGIE: AEIE: A P NN E =R S
B, RREXEENRERBRBES
MBRREENREZGREVER
XPFIRE_ZE——FhAB—H
EEZHZ12ELEH ILEREE
HWEEEEEZ NAEEAE
B ZBRRBES AR DR
18,500,00078 7T, MR KEEE&E
BrERRBRESSLEH DR
18,500,00078 7T, RIRKEBEERM
EBEDIRERAND I EFER
H, BEEETMG EARFHARE
RIB——F/)\A=+—HKZ
F-—=ZF=ZA=+—HZA RE
B, TEEAREBEILRNEK,
BHE_Z—UE=A=+—H,
AR FREHENRREESETE
KED, MRKEBBEDARN
AR ER,
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WiBEMIE AT %%/ HEWE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) yNSIIC
(a)  Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued) (a) UREBRAREEEEME ()
The goodwill arose in the acquisition because the cost of HAREHBRAEFEHEE,
combination included the control premium. In addition, the MWINBEEARE, iy, A6
consideration paid for the combination effectively included XM Z2REEREFEEAEEIR
amounts in relation to the assembled workforce and synergies BEH2EEESH N RpEME
to the Group’s existing business, such as sharing of research (Bl AEBIRE 2 B8 3t
expertise and wider coverage of sales network for the Group’s EMRES REEREZHERS)
existing pharmaceutical products. BREZFIE,
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group contributed approximately BRARVTSNEBEEZAREE
HK$57,030,586 and HK$3,925,387 revenue and profit REE TAYE. BEKSRE
respectively for the period between the date of acquisition and ZEINRE, ., TAENHEER
as at 31 March 2013 after taking into account the additional BENETLEER, BWEHHLE
depreciation/amortisation of property, plant and equipment, BF_E-—=-"F=ZH=+—H, X
prepaid lease payments and intangible assets on the basis of REEEBBABAN K zF2RIE
fair value arising in the initial accounting. [k 4957,030,586 78 TT Kz 3,925,387 75
TCo
If the acquisition has been completed on 1 April 2012, total HNER_E——FMA—HBE
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2013 from SR, KEBHE_E—=F
continuing operations would have been HK$227,335,305, —A=+—HLHEEREBFEL
and profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 from continuing TR 2 4B I\ FE 227,335,305
operations would have been HK$57,457,021. The pro BT, MBE_E—=F=A4
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is —t+—HULEFERBFERLESE
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results of B2 EA5T 45702178 7T, &
the operations of the Group that actually would have been EEREMHRSE, F—TFEARE
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2012, BER_FE—_FMBA—HZ/E
nor is it intended to be a projection of future results. NMTAEEBRAED 2 EEK
AKREEZER, TARRERE
BEEZTEA,
In determining the ‘pro-forma’ profit of the Group had Tianda AETE MR AL & B A A HI
Pharmaceuticals Group been acquired at the beginning of the TEERE 2 RNERHZ &
current period, the directors have calculated depreciation of K, EFCHEYE. BREAR
property, plant and equipment, amortisation of prepaid lease HITE., ANMEERELEEE
payments and intangible assets on the basis of the fair values EEY, BEREBOHZOS
arising in the initial accounting for the business combination. FEREEZ A REE,
Pursuant to the Asset Swap Agreement, the Acquisition Consideration RIEEEERE, WESFER
is to be partly settled by the Disposal Consideration. An analysis is BREESERED KN, 5
set out below: HrEFIAT -
HK$
BT
Satisfied by: XA
Disposal Consideration HEEBERE 302,200,000
Cash consideration HeRE 77,800,000

380,000,000
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group (continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Tianda Pharmaceuticals
Group:

KIEMEB AR, EE/ HEKE

YNSIICH)

(a)

WEER KB M (4)
WA KREXLEBEEZRESMN
HFEE

HK$

BT

Cash consideration paid ENR&ERE (77,800,000)
Bank balance and cash acquired FTERITHS LIRS 40,571,496
(37,228,504)

Acquisition of business from Cynergy Group

As referred to note 1, Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Australia),
an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into an acquisition agreement with independent third
parties, Cynergy Group for a consideration of approximately
AU$1,281,000 (equivalent to HK$10,399,819), which acquired
a business from Cynergy Group which relates to marketing,
sales and distribution of healthcare products in Australia.
The trademark and permits in relation to the sales of the
healthcare products, the inventory, the key management and
personnel, the distribution network and the supply chains
were acquired in the transaction. Accordingly, the transaction
meets the definition of a business combination. The purpose
of acquisition is to expand and diversify the pharmaceutical
segment by acquiring a well-developed business in Australia.
The transaction has been completed on 12 March 2013.

Assets and liability recognised at the date of acquisition on 12

(b)

[EICynergy Group S BE TS
MHIEE1ATR, ANF—RfES
BB AR RKESE CRAFIE)
EA Y837 55 = 75 Cynergy Groupz] 3Z I
B, UKE491,281,00008 7T
(1B & 1210,399,8193% 7T ) 181 Cynergy
Group H§ N —IE A B iR K Fll 53
RERBERZTH. HERD
HZER, BREBERHERH
ZEERHFAE. FE. FEE
BERAE. DiHEMERREERE
ERRZHPKE. Fit, XSFF
BEBEHZITR. cEKRES
13758 W R A F) 58 — I8 3 B AR
RZER, HMEMEBENTS
ko RBERZE—=F=8
+ZH%EMo

REEHH_FT-—=F=F+=

March 2013 were as follows: HERZEERGEWT :
Fair value
NREE
HK$
BT

Net assets acquired gz EEFE

Property, plant and equipment ME. BEKEE 121,785
Intangible assets BEEE 9,621,015
Inventories EE 657,019
Deferred tax liabilities (note 2) BIERIE A& (H3E2) (2,886,305)
Fair value of net assets BEFEZANEE 7,513,514
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WBEMIB AT, %%/ HEW B
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) AE] ()
(b)  Acquisition of business from Cynergy Group (continued) (b)  [EICynergy GroupU BB 3% (&)
The fair value has been valued by Asset Appraisal Limited, an ANAEBEEHENEBEHERE
independent qualified professional valuer, not connected to the 2B A ERE E (L E AP kE
Group. BENEBRBERABMGE,
The fair value of inventories at the date of acquisition FERWEHBHZ AR EEEHE
approximates to the selling price less cost of disposal and a EEBHERA LA E M AL
reasonable profit allowance. B2z BBEEE,
The fair value of property, plant and equipment has been M, MBEMRREBEZADEBEIR
valued on depreciated replacement cost approach. EREERAEME,
Goodwill arising on acquisition WESFREEZEE
HK$
BT
Cash consideration transferred sz ReRE 10,399,819
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net L FrIREE 2 PRI EE R EZ EER
assets acquired (100%) B%A(100%) (7,513,514)
Goodwill arising on acquisition (note 18) WEEFTE A 2 B E (MiE8) 2,886,305

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of business from Cynergy
Group because of the deferred tax liabilities recognised on
the amortisation of intangible assets which is non-deductible
under Australian Tax, upon the finalisation of the fair values on
identifiable assets acquired at the date of acquisition.

Cash outflow on acquisition of Purchased Assets

ERRTE W B HR P S T Sl B
EZAREBEEEERER, HIRER
AAERBAAIINRZBEEE
BEEIAECREBEARE, W@
Cynergy Group U S E A TS,

WiEEEEEREE Z RN

HK$
BT

Cash consideration paid ENREERE

10,399,819

The business did not contribute any revenue and profit for the
period between the date of acquisition and as at 31 March
2013.

RWEHHRE_F—=6=1
=+—H#E, ZEBLESR
EATRN Bz o
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WEEME AR %7/ LEWE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c)

Disposal of packaging and printing business

On 31 August 2012, the Group disposed of its packaging and
printing business upon completion of the Asset Swap. The net
assets of the packaging and printing business at the date of
disposal on 31 August 2012 were as follows:

YNSIICH)

(c) HEBRENRIZER
R-ZB——_F/)\B=+—H, &
EERTEREEERKEEHRE
FENRIZERS . BEEERIZERRE
EAP-_F——F/)\B=+—H

ZEEFENT :
31 August 2012
—F-"F)\B=1+-H
HK$
BT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of to HEFRAEEZEERAR
Tianda Group: paxiig
Property, plant and equipment M. REKRE 62,196,264
Prepaid lease payments B RERE 7,191,352
Goodwill BES 44,085,670
Intangible assets EVEE 72,855,774
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant and WEME, BERREZRE
equipment 4,133,022
Interest in an associate R—EEERB 2 ER 16,703,518
Available-for-sale investments P ERE
— investment in an investee company —BRER—EHIREAT 32,465,141
Inventories FE 37,780,614
Trade and other receivables FE R R EL A FEW R 22,222,842
Amounts due from related companies FEW R ENBE 5,614,128
Bank deposits SRITTER 164,861,927
Bank balances and cash RITHERKES 41,256,095
Trade and other payables ERT R EL A BT 3K (44,843,003)
Amounts due to related companies FENBIEABIE (8,542,292)
Dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders FERHEERRRZ RS (38,402,264)
Tax payable FEfHTRIE (3,128,369)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (21,131,740)
Net assets disposed of i E&ETE 395,318,679
Gain on disposal of packaging and printing business: & SSEENRIZER 2 KA
Disposal consideration of packaging and BENAEEZHERE
printing business 288,000,000
Deemed capital contribution from the ultimate BERKEBRABIHE
holding company (2,605,827)
Fair value of packaging and printing business Pt E BEERIEB 2 AR EE
disposed of 285,394,173
Net assets disposed of FTHEEETE (395,318,679)
Non-controlling interests FERER 117,193,432
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the KREEBRHIRBENDEE
net assets of the packaging and printing business B ORNREBESERMEZ
reclassified to profit or loss on loss of control REERERE
of the business 1,778,823
Gain on disposal before transaction cost HRRBHARI 2 HE R 9,047,749
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WiBEMIE AT %%/ HEWE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) AE] ()
(c) Disposal of packaging and printing business (continued) (c) HECREIRIZESE @
After deduction of the transaction cost and other tax, the NS AREMKRIEER, &
net gain on disposal of packaging and printing business is EQEINREE 2R FES
HK$5,336,647. 5,336,64778 7T,
The fair value of packaging and printing business disposed A EFE—ZF/)\B=+—HFH
of at 31 August 2012 has been arrived at on the basis of a EQEHNNERZAREEIE
valuation carried on that date provided by Asset Appraisal R EEETEEREREAT
Limited based on discounted cash flow analysis. Accordingly, BENRIRESRESTREH
the excess of disposal consideration of packaging and printing ETZHEBRE, B, 2%
business over the fair value of HK$2,605,827 was recorded in RIEBEHEREBEBEHAREEZ
equity reserve as deemed capital contribution from the ultimate & 52605827 BTN IEHFEE A
holding company. IRARIEREREEERATEZH
&,
The disposal gain includes i) fair value gain of HK$2,783,439 ZIEHEREEE) I EER
arising on available-for-sale investments — investment in BE-NR—BREEARZIREE
an investee company and ii) an amount of HK$1,778,823, HZAREERE2,7834397 T
representing the reclassification of the exchange reserve arisen Kii) 1,778,823 7T, RIEHER,
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries RAE_B—FFEARANBIHEEEHKE
with functional currency of RMB, to the Company’s functional RETEAS A RIS THEEE K
currency of HK$, before the change in functional currency of BAREBZINBASMBHRERE
the Company in 2010 from HK$ to RMB, directly to profit or BARNEIINEEMBITMES
loss upon disposal. In addition, HK$11,884,666, representing ZERHMEEEENPERE
the exchange reserve arisen from the translation of financial o AN, E_B—FEFEARNF
statements of the subsidiaries with functional currency of RMB IheE BB %, BN EgA
to the Group’s presentation currency of HK$, subsequent to AR ZHRBABHBRERHBE
the change in the Company’s functional currency in 2010 is ARNEBEREMEBITTATELARE
transferred directly to accumulated profits. 111,884,666 8 T E I EEE
Rt
HK$
BT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEESZREMLITE
Cash consideration received EWCRERE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of PR ERITRSRRS (41,256,095)

(41,256,095)




147

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ_F—IF=F=+—HILFE

30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WiBEMIE AR, %%/ HEWE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) AE] ()
(d) Disposal of mineral resources business (d) HEEERRER
On 31 August 2012, the Group disposed of its mineral RIEB——F/)\B=+—H, K
resources business upon completion of the Asset Swap. The EERTEREEERRHEHR
net assets of the mineral resources business at the date of BERRERE, REEHBH_=
disposal on 31 August 2012 were as follows: —Z—F)\B=+—H, BEEREIR
(B2 EEFENT
31 August 2012
—Z—_f)\B=1+—H
HK$
BT
Gain on disposal of mineral resources business: HEBERREB I
Disposal consideration of mineral EERRERZLERE
resources business 14,200,000
Deemed capital contribution from the ultimate RERBER AR ZHE
holding company (1,875,829)
Fair value of mineral resources business P ERERREBZAREE
disposed of 12,324,171
Net assets disposed of I EEETE
Property, plant and equipment ME. BEREE (1,100,789)
Exploration and evaluation assets BRRHEEE (6,751,321)
Other receivables H At FEIR (404,158)
Bank deposits SRR (3,889,878)
Bank balances and cash RITREBKRIRE (7,186,134)
Other payables HAih R 107,636
Loans from ultimate holding company BIEEBRATREZER 6,182,026
(13,042,618)
Non-controlling interests FEREDR 718,447
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of REEBEHIERENES
the net assets of the minerals resources BRZBEERREREEREZ
business reclassified to profit or loss on loss of RAERER
control of the business 3,257,263
Gain on disposal before transaction cost MBRR 5 B R 2 HEKE 3,257,263

After deduction of the transaction cost, the net gain on disposal
of mineral resources business is HK$2,546,161.

The directors of the Company considered that the carrying
value of the net assets of mineral resources business disposed
of approximate to its fair value of mineral resources business as
the operation is still in the very beginning stage. Accordingly,
the excess of disposal consideration of mineral resources
business over the fair value of HK$1,875,829 was recorded in
equity reserve as deemed capital contribution from the ultimate
holding company.

MRS AR, HEBERRERZ
WA B %32,546,1618 7T

APEEERS, HRFILEBEERIR
EBNMENTREERER, HFEEZ
FREERBERREB ZAAEER
. Alt, BEERREBZHENRER
HAREEZ £5H1,875,820B TN ER
FEPERBEREERABDZHE
NERo
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30. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS/DISPOSAL OF  30. WiBEMIE AT %%/ HEWE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) NSIICY
(d) Disposal of mineral resources business (continued) (d) HEREERERE®

The disposal gain includes an amount of HK$3,257,263, ZIE 1 E W B 15 £ %83,257,263
representing the reclassification of the exchange reserve arisen BT, BELER, RE-_F—
from the translation of financial statements of the subsidiaries BERNBHEEERBTEA
with functional currency of RMB, to the Company’s functional AREEIEHEEEKAAREZ
currency of HK$, before the change in functional currency of HWBARMBRRREALRNE
the Company in 2010 from HK$ to RMB, directly to profit or HEEEM B ITMELE 2 ER G
loss upon disposal. In addition, HK$463,166, representing BEEEF EEED. I, #
the exchange reserve arisen from the translation of financial B -BFERNANEE ST
statements of the subsidiaries with functional currency of RMB %, BheeEAs ANREZ B
to the Group’s presentation currency of HK$, subsequent to NEUBERERRBEAETEEZ R
the change in the Company’s functional currency in 2010 is BB TTRT E A BE 415 463,166

transferred directly to accumulated profits. BITEESRERHEM,.
HK$
BIT

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELZIREMEFE
Cash consideration received EWCRERE -
Bank balances and cash disposed of P ERITHESRIES (7,186,134)
(7,186,134)
31.  TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 3. EEETMEE

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has bills receivables of
HK$6,858,885 (2013: HK$6,232,435) that were transferred to
suppliers by endorsing those receivables on a full recourse basis.
As the Group has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the trade receivables and trade payables. These financial
assets are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

A_FB—NE=A=+—H, AEER
CHEREEZEREERKERME
FEPHERZ FEIREE 46,858,885/ 7T
(ZB—=4F : 623243587T) . HRA
EEWREREZERKFEESHZE
KER KR OER, HEMESerERERK
IR KEMIRRZ IREIE. ZETE
ERBHRANRAER 2 FEHMERR
IR,

Bills receivables endorsed to
suppliers with full recourse
AtEEE SRS mERE

ZERER
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount of bills receivables EWZE 2 REE 6,858,885 6,232,435
Carrying amount of trade payables FETRRF Z BREME (6,858,885) (6,232,435)
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32.

33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
adopted on 13 July 2010 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, the directors and
employees of the Company may, at the discretion of the Company’s
directors, be granted options (the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in
the Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined by its directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Share as
stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the SEHK on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Share on the date of grant.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted under
the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, and the number of shares in
respect of which Options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from the
date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up not later than
30 days after the date of grant. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. An Option is exercisable
on the date when the offer for the grant of Options is made but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
Options.

No Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@) Amount due to a related company

32.

33.

FiEstE

REBEARBDR-FB-FFLA+=EK
M st (TxETE)), TEA/M
ERAEERGERREBRHTER, &
ARAEFINBEALRRAEEREER
TEERE(EBRE), MARFAES
BEZEBRBERALB RN (TZFR
1), (BLEERBERNERR)ZED
RERLAREEBHRAERTZEAR
BERABZIBHE ; (|ZFRONEE
REBMAEEXEAEETBBRAE
Tz EARERARZFIRHE ; &
(ijZ RO RFEEBMZEE=ZZ&
=&,

REANFRREBLMAE, RIBXETE
R ZBRERY Rk 2RI BERE
BRARDNEMREEZRTRINZ
10%, REM—FEREEMALRE
ZBREFMS R ZRINEE, T 586
RABREARE B 2T 2 1%,

ZETEIERMBBETERNER. &
B2 BRELDANR L HHRRI0RPIEE
F. EMREBREZZRRHEMIET
ERIE, BRIEFTREZERLBKRE
HETTRE, EREMER TRRBIRE
BRHBBRTFNTE,

BERMZETBILR, WRELEMAE
Bt
FAEAN LR

(a) MEf—MEREARRIE

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade balances B4R 1,463,087 926,236
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

Amount due to a related company (continued)

33. &
(a)

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s amount due to a related
company, which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company, is
trading in nature, arising from purchase of packaging materials
for pharmaceuticals and biotechnological products. The whole
amount as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are aged within 90
days. The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and with

credit term within 90 days.

During the year, the Group entered into the following (b)
transactions with related companies relating to continuing and

discontinued operations:

@A\ TIRE @)

& —REREARFIE (@)
ATE-NME=Z/A=+—H, &
EEEM—BEEAR (BEAA
BRRMBARE) 2FEBESE
B, BREBEAYESRZ2EE
MBFES. RZIF—EOFERZ
F-—=F=ZHA=+—H, BEX
BEZREAVEN. 25845
EIREERAKE, BEEHAD
HIUAN,

AEFBFNRSELLEEBLE
MR IS E R E N BHER AN
RS :

Name of related company Notes  Nature of transactions 2014 2013

FEAE &S M XHHEE HK$ HK$

BT BT

EEEEEAREEAT ()  Sales - 32,633,780
HE

EBEERESERAT (i) Sales - 9,188,536
HE

Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) (i) Sales - 1,890,518
RAEEE (8) HE

AEES (EE) BREEAT (i) Sales - 79,364
HE

EHHAENBRTERAR (i) Purchases - 2,760,763
BE

Zhuhai S.E.Z. Cheng Cheng Printing (iii) Purchases 2,932,241 1,593,831

Co. Ltd. ("Cheng Cheng’)

BB R RIS ERAR (THA) BE

Tianda Group (Australia) Pty. Ltd. (iv) Management fee income 578,928 -

EEBWRA

Notes:

MYEE

(i)

()

The related companies were either subsidiaries or a joint-controlled
entity of a non-controlling shareholder with significant influence
over a subsidiary of the Company. These related party transactions
ceased upon completion of the Asset Swap on 31 August 2012.

The amount represented sales of packaging and printing products
to Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) up to the date of completion of
the Asset Swap. Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) was formerly a
fellow subsidiary of the Company and became a subsidiary of the
Group as at 31 August 2012.

The amount represents purchases of packaging and printing
products from Cheng Cheng, which became a fellow subsidiary of
the Company upon the completion of Asset Swap Agreement at 31
August 2012.

The amount represents management fee income from Tianda
Group (Australia) Pty. Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

(i)

(i

(i)

FHENBERBHANBMELETEAF
BH 2 FEBRIRZ WER B SR ERE
HEE, ZFREALRGNR_FT—Z
FN\B=+—HEEEMRTHERREL,

ZEHEEEEERRSEH AMATHE
BERMRBIERTRREE(ERB) . XK
i%(fﬁl’@)f‘ﬁﬁuﬁﬁ’&?zm%ﬁﬂ%/&
8, BRZF—F/)\R=+—HEA
2&%@2%‘%@70

ZEBEBEAHBR(R_F——_F/)\H
=+—BEEEBRBRTHERBER
BlZEARNEAR) BEEERIER.

ZEBEEREBAQNABRKBAR
Tianda Group (Australia) Pty Ltd Z2ERBE

o
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33. BAEALIKEE @
(c) Compensation of key management personnel c) FEEEASHME
The remunerations of directors and other members of key EERHMFEEBAEREN
management during the year are as follows: ZEA0T
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
BT BIT
Short-term benefits EHRER 3,914,846 3,726,244
Post-employment benefits RIRIER 15,000 29,000
3,929,846 3,755,244
The remunerations of key management, including directors, TEEEAS(BEESE) 25 WM
were determined by reference to the performance of individuals T2 BEBEAARBELTSZEBIEAM
and market trends. B
34.  MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS ¥, FEFHRERS

There are no major non-cash transactions for the year ended 31
March 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Acquisition Consideration
of Tianda Pharmaceuticals Group was partly settled by the Disposal
consideration of Disposal Group as set out in note 30.

BE_SNF=-A=+—HLEFE,
METEFRER .

BE_T-—=—F=-A=+—HLEE,
RREXEBZKRBEERNERLE
ARz B EEEAERDAE (BN
B¥EE30) o
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35.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

35. ARBZHMBIRRR

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
BT BT

ASSETS BE
Plant and equipment BT 2,489,300 2,865,103
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIKE 230,079,545 221,964,962
Other receivables and rental deposits HittEW kB EEe 2,201,150 1,702,234
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW KB A B FIE 179,968,167 195,640,191
Bank deposits RITHER 252,216,102 243,456,573
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERE 4,143,290 8,277,157
671,097,554 673,906,220

LIABILITIES afs
Other payables HMEMR 3,220,862 2,585,806
Amount due to a subsidiary eI B AR FIE 11,741,599 -
14,962,461 2,585,806
NET ASSETS BERE 656,135,093 671,320,414

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXRfEE

Share capital 5% 187,011,816 187,011,816
Reserves it 469,123,277 484,308,598
TOTAL EQUITY TEimiasE 656,135,093 671,320,414
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36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

3. EEMBABZFE

A.  Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 A UTARIE—NMEER_SZS—=
March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: FZRA=F+—HARATENE
NEZFHE
Place of Issued and Proportion of nominal value of Proportion
incorporation/  fully paid ordinary issued ordinary share of voting
registration share capital/ capitallregistered power held by
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered capital  capital held by the Company the Company  Principal activities
ERTRER
EMRERAL, LERs,/ FARMBERTEERE, FATEF
WEAREHE HMRERLE EREX HEMEAEEE BREBHE TEXE
Directly Indirectly
EiE iEES
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % % % %
Meng Sheng PRC RMB36,000,000 - - 55 55 55 55  Research, development,
Pharmaceutical* manufacture and sales
of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
Rz HE AR BEAYER MR, B
36,000,0007C B HERHE
Yunyu Bio-Pharmaceutical  British Virgin US$1 100 100 - - 100 100  Investment holding
Company Limited Islands/PRC/
Hong Kong
EREARE 1ER REER
&/%E,/
N
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC RMB160,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100  Research, development,
(Zhuhai)** manufacture and sales
of pharmaceutical and
biotechnology products
RREEE (Kg) FE AR BELYERZMR. H
160,000,0007T B, BERHE
Tianda Pharmaceuticals Australia AU$1,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100  Marketing, sales and
(Australia) distribution of healthcare
products
RRE% (RAFI) WARE 1,000,000:87T T8, HERDHRE
Em
Tianda Pharmaceuticals PRC HK$50,000,000 - - 100 100 100 100  Research and development
(China) Limited of pharmaceutical
products and provision of
intra-group consultation
service
RREE(FE)ERAE  FE 50,000,000787C BEERZMAKE

*

*k

Company incorporated as cooperative joint venture enterprise.
Company established as foreign invested limited liability company.

*k

%, DRRHEERN
BRE AR

NEUGEEERER L,
BRI BINERREEAT ZAFE,
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36.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

A

(continued)

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length
and therefore the above list contains only those subsidiaries
which principally affect the results or assets and liabilities of the
Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

36. FEMBARIZFEBE®

A

(%)
EERRINHITENB AR ZF
FELEHENABRTR, &
b, ERFIIIEBFEHAEERE
BHREEMBBEEERTEZNM
BEl,

REBESHARRNFREMRE, 5
BN BB TENEBES.

BREXFERERZIEEEM
BABZ#E
TRITEEEAFERERZ
FEEF2EWNBLBZFHE

Place of Proportion of
incorporation and ownership interests and
principal place voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
SRR ERRERFEEE SEEFERER
MEAEAME TEERME R ERIR AL R gl Rt iRiED
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Meng Sheng PRC 45% 45% 26,899,780 26,383,870 63915149 37,204,417
Pharmaceutical
BaEx HE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

ERBEEERNFEREZZASE
BB AR MBERTEST
WF. TXHMBEREREE
PEREI IR < 28R,



[ ozl Report 2014 RIS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ_F—IF=F=+—HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 3. FEMBLABZFHEE®@
B. Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material B. HEEXIRKRERZIESEM
non-controlling interests (continued) BARZ#E@®
Meng Sheng Pharmaceutical BEA T
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
ABTT BT
Current assets TMENEE 128,201,675 138,052,303
Non-current assets EREBEE 51,117,907 31,626,176
Current liabilities ENEE (39,991,256) (89,930,739)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AA BRI EEE(LE D 139,328,326 79,746,740
Non-controlling interests E[S Ay g 63,915,149 37,204,417
Year ended Year ended
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
g= S
—EmE —E-=F
=B=+—H =ZA=t+—H
LFE FE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue YN 141,015,185 123,183,389
Expenses X (81,237,896) (64,552,567)
Profit for the year AEEHR 59,777,289 58,630,822
Profit and total comprehensive income AR BERIEEREF K
attributable to owners of the Company SEWELERE 32,646,450 34,076,961
Profit and total comprehensive income R (LR &
attributable to the non-controlling interests SHNELRE 26,710,732 28,911,936
Profit and total comprehensive income REEHFREEBEAERE
for the year 59,357,182 62,988,897
Net cash inflows from operating activities RESEE 2 HEMNTFE 75,566,114 68,066,785
Net cash outflows from investing activities RETEZRSRLEE (24,356,931) (6,557,995)
Net cash outflows from financing activities REESH RS R FE (62,259,131) (25,695,545)
Net cash (outflow) inflow B () RNEE (11,049,948) 35,813,245
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37.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 15 April 2014,
Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai), the indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company has entered into the Project Investment
Agreement (“Agreement”) with Zhuhai City Jinwan District Sanzao
Town People’s Government (“ZCSTG”) pursuant to which ZCSTG
agrees to carry out the open tender in respect of the land use right
of a piece of land in Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province, the PRC at
the starting bid price of RMB32,389,392 (equivalent to approximately
HK$40,486,740). Tianda Pharmaceuticals (Zhuhai) intends to
acquire the land use right through the open tender which shall be
completed within 90 days after signing the Agreement. The Group
intends to establish new facilities on the land, which will be used for
production, sales, research and development facilities for its own use
in pharmaceutical, biotechnology and healthcare products. At the date
of this report, the transaction has not yet completed.

37.

BREHRRER

RIBAABHAA S —EMA+AR
Az %, AAREEL2ENBAF
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